

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL

#21324

For

<u>Providing Supplemental Transportation for Field Trips and Athletic</u> <u>Events – Coach Services</u>

FOR THE CLEVELAND MUNICIPAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
DBA: CLEVELAND METROPOLITAN SCHOOL DISTRICT
BOARD OF EDUCATION, 1111 SUPERIOR AVENUE E, SUITE 1800
CLEVELAND, OHIO 44114

UNDER THE DIRECTION OF THE TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF THE CLEVELAND METROPOLITAN SCHOOL DISTRICT CUYAHOGA COUNTY, OHIO

Table of Contents

Part I: NOTICE OF REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL #21324	4
Section I: Instructions to Proposers	5
Part II: Specifications and Scope of Work	9
Section I: Introduction	10
Section II: Cleveland Metropolitan School District General Information	10
Section III: General Service Requirements	10
Section IV: Vendor Profile	10
Section V: Proposal Process	10
Section VI: Contract Period & Award	11
Section VII: RFP #21324- Specifications	12
1. Introduction	12
2. Scope of Work	12
3. Special Circumstances	12
4. Mandatory Requirements for Vehicles	12
5. Insurance	13
6. Personnel	14
7. Vendor Compliance	15
8. Bid Pricing	15
9. Exceptional Trips	16
10. Invoicing and Billing	16
Section VIII: Cost Form	17
Section IX: PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS & RESPONSE COMPONENTS &	10
STRUCTURE	
Section XI: GENERAL TERMS & CONDITIONS	
Section XII: PERFORMANCE BOND	
Attachment A: Transportation Driver Trip Sheet	
Attachment B: Sample Invoice	
Appendix A: District Related Forms	
Required Purchasing Division Documents and Instructions	
Section I: Addendum Acknowledgement Form for RFP #21324	
Section II: Acknowledgement.	
Section III: Vendor Request Form	
Section IV: Taxpayer ID Form	
Section V: No Proposal Form	36

Section VI: Certificate of Debarment
Section VI: Certificate of Debarment Pg. 2
Section VII: Conflict of Interest Form
Section VIII: Proposer Qualifications Form
Section IX: State of Ohio Insurance
Section X: Sample Certificate of Liability Insurance
Section XI: Non-Collusion Affidavit
Section XII: Diversity Business Enterprise Program and Participation Forms
1: DBE Form A
2: DBE Form B
3: DBE Form C
4: DBE Form D
5: DBE Form E
6: DBE Form F
7: DBE Form G
8: DBE Form H
Section XIII: EOA Contractual Declaration Forms
CMSD Affirmative Action Program
Form 1: Vendor Contract Compliance Form
Form 2: Compliance Declaration
Form 3: Employment Data Form
Section XIV: Supplier Contract Sample
Section XV: References

Part I: NOTICE OF REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL #21324

Separate Sealed proposals for the requirement set forth below will be received in the Cashier's Office of the Cleveland Metropolitan School District located at 1111 Superior Avenue E, Cleveland, Ohio 44114, until 1:00 pm current local time on August 31, 2021. Mailing of RFP responses are encouraged. However, hand deliveries will only be accepted from 11:00 AM to 1:00 PM on August 31, 2021. PPE IS REQUIRED TO BE WORN FOR ENTRANCE TO AND WHILE IN THE BUILDING. This RFP will not be publicly opened.

Providing Supplemental Transportation for Field Trips and Athletic Events - Coach Services

Copies of Instructions to Proposers, Specifications, and Drawings may be obtained directly from the District's Webpage. Go to <u>clevelandmetroschools.org/purchasing</u> and click on the RFP number. If you require assistance, please email <u>seletha.thompson@clevelandmetroschools.org</u>.

There will be a Pre-Proposal Conference for this Request for Proposal on August 6, 2021 at 10:00 AM. The Pre-Proposal Conference will be at the Transportation Department Office located at 3832 Ridge Rd., Cleveland, OH 44144. Attendance at the Pre-Proposal Conference is encouraged but not mandatory.

All questions and correspondence related to this RFP must be submitted in writing ONLY by **12:00 pm on August 9, 2021** at the email address given above. All answers to corresponding questions and concerns will be sent directly to those submitting the question. A comprehensive question and answer list will also be posted at clevelandmetroschools.org/purchasing. Any errors and/or omissions reported will be addressed via Addenda. Addenda will be issued no later than **August 12, 2021.**

No proposal may be withdrawn for at least ninety (90) days after the deadline for submittal.

The Cleveland Metropolitan School District reserves the right to reject any and all Proposals, to waive any and all informalities or irregularities, and to disregard all non-conforming responsive conditional Proposals.

The Cleveland Metropolitan School District does not discriminate in educational programs, activities or employment on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, age, religion or disability.

The new Uniform Grant Guidance, 2 CFR200 (UGG) went into effect for the Cleveland Metropolitan School District (CMSD) on July 1, 2018 and will apply to awards or funding increments issued on or after this date. Purchases funded by federal grant funds must adhere to regulations found in Uniform Guidance "Super Circular", 2 CFR 200 (UGG), as a condition of receiving funds and to meet annual audit compliance. In an effort to keep policy for all grants consistent, the CMSD will implement the new federal guidelines regarding procurement utilized with federal grants immediately.

Proposers on this work shall be required to comply with all applicable requirements pertaining to fair labor, state and local government.

M. Angela Foraker Executive Director, Procure to Pay

Section I: Instructions to Proposers

Providing Supplemental Transportation for Field Trips and Athletic Events - Coach Services

- 1. All proposals shall be made upon the proposal Form (s) furnished. All information requested in the RFP must be filled in legibly and complete with blue ink signatures, or the Proposal may be considered non-responsive. No oral, telephonic, or telegraphic proposals or modifications will be considered. Proposals shall be submitted in an opaque envelope, and the RFP name and number must be on the outside envelope of submittals including shipping labels.
- Proposals are due at the Cashier's Office of the Cleveland Metropolitan School District, 1111
 Superior Avenue E, Cleveland, Ohio 44114, before 1:00 pm. current local time on August 31,
 2021. Mailing of RFP responses are encouraged. However, hand deliveries will only be
 accepted from 11:00 AM to 1:00 PM on August 31, 2021. PPE IS REQUIRED TO BE WORN
 FOR ENTRANCE TO AND WHILE IN THE BUILDING.
- 3. All submissions must include one (1) original, with blue ink signatures, two (2) paper copies of the proposal, and one (1) electronic copy of the proposal on a flash drive. Vendors who do not comply with this requirement will be notified that they have twenty-four (24) hours in which to comply with this requirement or their Proposal will be disqualified. This applies to copies only.

Proposals that are submitted must include:

- a. Completed Proposal Form(s) including evidence of State certification to perform the work required.
- b. Signed Acknowledgement for Instructions to Proposers
- c. Signed and notarized Proposer's Qualification Form.
- d. Completed Addendum Acknowledgement Form acknowledging all addenda issued (if applicable).
- e. Signed Conflict of Interest Form.
- f. Completed and notarized Non-Collusion Affidavit.
- g. Completed and notarized EOA Compliance Declaration documents.
- h. Completed and notarized Diversity Business Enterprise Participation Forms.
- i. Completed addendum acknowledgement form acknowledging all addenda issued (if applicable).
- j. Properly executed Affidavit and/or Company Board of Directors Resolution authorizing certain person(s) to sign legal documents such as the Proposal Form, Proposer's Qualification Form, etc.

Proposer acknowledges that all material and information responsive to the specifications must be furnished or the proposal may be deemed non-responsive and not considered.

- 4. No proposal may be withdrawn for at least ninety (90) days after the deadline for submittal.
- 5. The Cleveland Metropolitan School District reserves the right to reject any and all proposals, to waive any and all informalities or irregularities, and to disregard all non-conforming responsive conditional proposals.
- 6. Proposer understands and agrees that subsequent to submission of the proposal, any District resolution authorizing the award of a contract or agreement does not vest any contractual rights in the proposer.
- 7. Proposer understands and agrees that any such District resolution operates only to encumber funds necessary for the projects and does not create a binding contract.
- 8. Proposer further acknowledges and agrees that any such District resolution may be revoked, at any time prior to execution of a formal, written contract.
- 9. Proposer acknowledges and agrees that it has no vested contractual right until such time as a purchase order and contract have been issued.
- 10. Proposer further acknowledges and agrees that execution of a contract and issuance of a purchase order is not a ministerial function, but is a formal requirement for acceptance of the RFP.
- 11. Proposer must present evidence to the District, upon request, that they are fully competent and have the necessary facilities, equipment and financial resources to perform the work required in the Specifications within the time frame required.
- 12. Proposer shall not include Ohio Sales tax in the price quoted. The Cleveland Metropolitan School District will provide a tax exempt certificate to the proposer upon request.
- SECURITY: Vendor's workmen, foremen, other personnel, and subcontractors who will be working on District property will be required to meet Cleveland Metropolitan School District security requirements. Vendor must issue personnel I.D. badges. Any worker not complying with CMSD security requirements will immediately be ordered off the project and without prejudice or recourse to CMSD.
 - Vendor agrees to successfully complete background checks on all of its employees, agents, and subcontractors who provide services under this Agreement to CMSD facilities. Vendor agrees to warrant that it will not at any time hire or utilize any individual to provide services under this Agreement on CMSD premises where such person has been convicted of, or pleaded guilty to, any criminal offense enumerated in O.R.C. 3319.39(B) or equivalent provisions under the laws of another state or the Federal Government.
- 14. **INSURANCE:** The successful company, their subcontractors and suppliers of labor and/or materials for this project on behalf of the Cleveland Metropolitan School District, including organizations having personnel, equipment, and vehicles on District property, shall provide evidence of insurance as follows:

a. Commercial General Liability: Including limited contractual liability

\$2,000,000.00 Limit of Liability

(Per occurrence)

b. Automobile Liability: Including non-owned and hired

\$2,000,000.00 Limit of Liability

(per occurrence)

c. Workers Compensation: Workers compensation and

employer's insurance to the full extent

as required by applicable Law

This requirement must be fulfilled by the successful vendor providing the Purchasing Office of the CMSD with a current Certificate of Insurance (standard ACORD form), showing the Board of Education of the Cleveland Municipal School District as an additional insured (Certificate Holder does not constitute being an additional insured), within five (5) days of Notice of Intent to Award Agreement. The certificates of insurance shall contain a provision that the policy or policies will not be canceled without thirty (30) days' prior written notice to the District.

The required insurance must be provided by a company licensed by the State of Ohio, which company must be financially acceptable to the Administration of the Cleveland Municipal School District

The School District is not liable for vandalism which results in damage(s) to the property or vehicles of the Vendor. The school District will not reimburse for private insurance deductibles for such vandalism.

Vandalism damage is defined as damage resulting from criminal conduct for which an individual may (but not necessarily be processed under the Ohio Revised Code.

15. **DIVERSITY BUSINESS GOAL:** The Diversity Business and Vendor Contract Compliance Programs shall make every good faith effort to ensure that certified diversity business enterprises in the Cleveland Metropolitan School's relevant geographic market area shall be afforded the maximum opportunity to compete for contracts, services, and purchases. The general goals for diversity business participation are: 15% for services, 20% for goods and supplies, and 30% for maintenance, construction, and repair.

Non-diversity vendors will have their diversity business participation counted toward their goal attainment only with minority vendors who are certified and demonstrate previous experience in the respective business classification of the prime contractor. Only direct participation in the subcontract will be counted toward diversity business enterprise goal attainment.

Vendors shall refer to Section V of this RFP for further information and requirements on the District's diversity goals.

The diversity business goal for this RFP is: 15% Services

16. **REQUESTS FOR CLARIFICATIONS:** Questions regarding interpretation of the content of this RFP must be directed to: Seletha Thompson, email: seletha.thompson@clevelandmetroschools.org. Answers to any questions shall be in

writing and shall be sent to all firms who are on record with the District as having received a copy of this RFP. It is therefore imperative that firms provide full and accurate contact information to the District. The name of the party submitting the question will not be identified in the answers. Firms considering responding to this RFP are strictly prohibited from communicating with any member of District's staff or representatives of the Owner except as set forth in this section.

- 17. **EVALUATION CRITERIA.** Evaluation of the proposal will be based upon several factors including, but not limited to: competence to perform the required services as indicated by the training, education and experience of the firm's personnel, especially the training, education and experience of the employees who would be assigned to perform the services; ability in terms of workload and availability of qualified personnel, equipment and facilities to perform the required services competently and expeditiously; past performance as reflected by the evaluations of previous clients with respect to factors such as control of costs, quality of work and meeting of deadlines; and other similar factors. The District is not required to select the firm that submits the lowest cost proposal for providing the services. In the event the District is unable to negotiate a satisfactory contract with the selected firm, the District may terminate negotiations with that firm and enter into negotiations with another firm submitting that submitted a proposal.
- 18. The Vendor authorizes the District and its representatives to contact the owners and professionals on projects on which the Vendor has worked, and Vendor authorizes such owners and professionals to provide the District with a candid evaluation of the Vendor's performance. By submitting its proposal, the Vendor agrees that if it or any person, directly or indirectly, on its behalf or for its benefit brings an action against any of such owners or professional or the employees of any of them as a result of or related to such candid evaluation, the Vendor will indemnify and hold harmless such owners and professionals and the employees of any of them from any claims whether or not proven that are part of or are related to such action and from all legal fees and expenses incurred by any of them arising out of or related to such legal action. This obligation is expressly intended for the benefit of such owners and professionals, and the employees of each of them.
- 19. The new Uniform Grant Guidance, 2 CFR200 (UGG) went into effect for Cleveland Metropolitan School District (CMSD) on July 1, 2018 and will apply to awards or funding increments issued on or after this date. Purchases funded by federal grant funds must adhere to regulations found in Uniform Guidance "Super Circular", 2 CFR 200 (UGG), as a condition of receiving funds and to meet annual audit compliance. In an effort to keep policy for all grants consistent, the CMSD will implement the new federal guidelines regarding procurement utilized with federal grants immediately.



RFP #21324

Part II: Specifications and Scope of Work

Providing Supplemental Transportation for Field Trips and Athletic Events - Coach Services

FOR THE CLEVELAND METROPOLITAN SCHOOL DISTRICT

Section I: Introduction

The Cleveland Metropolitan School District (hereafter the "District, "CMSD" or Cleveland Municipal School District) is soliciting proposals to establish term contracts with one or more qualified vendor for **Providing Supplemental Transportation for Field Trips and Athletic Events** - **Coach Services** for the Cleveland Metropolitan School District under Request for Proposal ("RFP") 21324.

Section II: Cleveland Metropolitan School District General Information

The Cleveland Metropolitan School District is a large urban school system with over 100 instructional and non-instructional sites, approximately 5,000 teachers and administrative staff, 40,000 students, and 3,500 classrooms.

Section III: General Service Requirements

The following general service requirements apply to each RFP and are in addition to any component or service-specific requirements presented in the individual RFP.

- All prices must clearly delineate all costs.
- All prices must be line itemized, where applicable.
- Time and materials costs must be listed clearly, by like item, where applicable.
- An agreed-upon dispute resolution mechanism must be defined.
- There is no guarantee of any minimum amount of services that may be requested during the term of the contract.

Section IV: Vendor Profile

The primary attributes the District seeks in a vendor include:

- Demonstrated experience and success of vendor in providing Providing
 Supplemental Transportation for Field Trips and Athletic Events Coach Services
- Responsiveness to specifications and an understanding of District needs.
- Capacity & resources to perform the services described in the RFP.
- Availability and flexibility when it comes to meeting District needs.

Section V: Proposal Process

The proposal process will proceed along the following guidelines, for which pertinent dates are presented in the RFP transmittal letter and respective RFP:

- Posting of RFP on CMSD Procurement webpage
- Notice in local newspaper regarding RFP posting
- Vendor submission of written questions
- On-line publication of written questions and responses

- Issuance of addendum, as necessary
- Receipt of vendors' intent to propose or not propose
- Receipt of proposals at CMSD
- Evaluation Committee review
- Notification of proposal award to selected vendor(s) and notification of non-award to other vendors
- Contract negotiation(s) with selected vendor(s)
- Contract finalization with selected vendor, final signatures obtained

All questions must be written and directed to **seletha.thompson@clevelandmetroschools.org**. All questions received and responses thereto will be distributed via the District's website.

All information received by the District shall become the property of CMSD. The District reserves the right to accept or reject any or all proposals without explanation.

Proposers should note that the following Request for Proposals is general in nature to express a wide-ranging need. Proposers should feel free to define and specify in detail their services and products.

Section VI: Contract Period & Award

The contract period is for three (3) years, with two (2) one year renewal options. The term of the Agreement will be from **October 1, 2021 to September 30, 2024** pending authorization of funds at the discretion of the District. There are two renewal option for this agreement at the discretion of the District. Renewal Option 1 is for the 24-25 School Year (October 1, 2024 through September 30, 2025). Renewal Option 2 is for the 23-24 School Year (October 1, 2025 through September 30, 2026).

Section VII: RFP #21324- Specifications

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL

CMSD is soliciting proposals to establish term contracts with one or more qualified vendor for **Providing Supplemental Transportation for Field Trips and Athletic Events - Coach Services** for the Cleveland Metropolitan School District under Request for Proposal ("RFP") 21324.

1. Introduction

The Transportation Division of the Cleveland Metropolitan School District must often use the services of commercial bus companies to provide supplementary transportation for field trips and/or athletic events. These trips are scheduled through the Transportation Planning Office. When school buses are not available, the Transportation Planning Office arranges supplementary trips through one of our Term Agreement vendors. Trips are arranged with awarded vendors at the discretion of the District. Vendors are required to be road coaches. Field trips of students in large groups, usually above 40 students, will require road coach type buses, especially for long trips outside of Cuyahoga County. Adequate back-up units must be available.

2. Scope of Work

The work under this proposal shall be limited to the provision of student transportation for various field trips, athletic events, and school-sponsored special education activities. These services shall be arranged on an "as needed" basis to supplement the Cleveland Metropolitan School District bus fleet.

Any field trip arrangements will be assigned exclusively by the Transportation Planning Office. Vendors are not permitted to work directly with schools and schools are not permitted to work directly with vendors. However, schools are able to indicate their preferred vendor from the list of awarded vendors to the Transportation Planning Office for consideration. Vendors who accept trips without going through the Transportation Planning Office are not guaranteed payment for the trip.

3. Special Circumstances

There are cases when door-to-door drop-offs or cluster drop-offs, especially on late night return trips from athletic events are required. The vendor will be notified when a request for such transportation is made. The coach or other adult chaperone (excluding driver) must remain on the vehicle until the last student drop-off is complete. The driver must complete the proper form to be submitted to the Transportation Planning Office with both the time and location of the last drop off as well as their signature.

4. Mandatory Requirements for Vehicles

A. All vehicles must meet Federal, State, and City safety and licensing specifications and requirements.

- B. Vendor must provide safety equipment including working safety belts for each passenger, car seats, and/or harnesses as required and noted on the route sheets provided by CMSD.
- C. Vendor must provide on board first aid kit and fire extinguisher.
- D. Vehicles must be well maintained and kept clean.
- E. Vehicles must bear adequate signage to designate student ridership.
- F. A complete description and inventory of vehicles must be provided as part of this proposal.
- G. Adequate backup units must be available.
- H. Vendor must provide the number of drives and vehicles available as part of this proposal.
- I. All vehicles must have two (2) way radios or telephone (cell phone) communication.
- J. The vendor company is required to be licensed as a commercial carrier and must submit a copy of the license annually to the Director of Transportation (see box below):

Commercial carriers include carriers that are licensed and inspected by the appropriate government agencies to transport passengers for hire. Examples would include railroads, airlines, commercial watercraft, or commercial buses, but excluding 12 to 15 passenger vans.

Vehicles not meeting the definitions of commercial carriers do not conform to state and federal law/rule and shall not be used for transportation of pupils to or from school or school related events.

5. Insurance

Winning Contractor shall carry, pay for, and keep in force, with a company or companies licensed to do business in the State of Ohio, comprehensive general liability and comprehensive automobile liability. The Contractor shall provide Workers Compensation Insurance for its employees in statutory limits. The policy of liability insurance will carry an endorsement upon the face showing CMSD, Officers of CMSD administrators, employees, agents and servants of the schools, individually and severally, as additional insured under the policy.

The Contractor shall present and maintain current certificates of insurance throughout the term of the contract to CMSD giving evidence of the insurance coverage. A Certificate of Insurance or other evidence of insurability must be submitted with proposal. A Certificate of Insurance must be submitted annually to CMSD, upon renewal or upon obtaining a new insurance company, throughout the life of this transportation agreement. Each insurance company shall agree not to terminate their coverage without thirty (30) days written notice to CMSD and to the Contractor, and to include this clause in the insurance policy and in the certificate of insurance.

Notwithstanding any terms, conditions or provisions, in any other writing between the parties, the contractor/permittee hereby agrees to effectuate the naming of CMSD as an unrestricted additional insured on the contractor's/permittee's insurance policies, with the exception of Workers' Compensation.

The policy naming CMSD as additional insured shall:

- be an insurance policy from a rated "secured" or better, State of Ohio admitted insurer;
- provide for 30 days' notice of cancellation;

- state that the organization's coverage shall be primary coverage for CMSD, its Officers, employees and volunteers.
- state that the policy affirmatively provides coverage for claims of negligent hiring, training and supervision, which may arise in the context of sexual molestation, abuse, harassment, or similar sexual misconduct.
- CMSD shall be listed as an additional insured by endorsement. The certificate must state that an endorsement is being used. A copy of the endorsement shall be included with the certificate of insurance.

The contractor/permittee agrees to indemnify CMSD for any applicable deductibles. The insurance producer must indicate whether or not they are an agent for the companies providing the coverage.

Required Insurance:

- Commercial General Liability Insurance \$2,000,000 per occurrence.
- Automobile Liability \$2,000,000 combined single limit for owned, hired and borrowed and non-owned vehicles.
- Workers' Compensation Statutory Workers' Compensation and Employers' Liability Insurance for all employees.

Contractor/permittee acknowledges that failure to obtain such insurance on behalf of CMSD will constitutes a material breach of contract and subjects it to liability for damages, indemnification and all other legal remedies available to CMSD. The contractor/permittee will provide CMSD with a certificate of insurance, evidencing the above requirements have been met, prior to commencement of work or use of facilities.

The School District is not liable for vandalism which results in damage(s) to the property or vehicles of the Vendor. The school District will not reimburse for private insurance deductibles for such vandalism. Vandalism damage is defined as damage resulting from criminal conduct for which an individual may (but not necessarily) be prosecuted under the Ohio Revised Code.

6. Personnel

All personnel requirements must be met by all drivers including personnel assigned as backup or substitute to either of these positions:

- A. Must hold current applicable Ohio license as required by law.
- B. Mandatory driver's abstract and federal criminal background check for drivers and monitors must be submitted with the proposal and at the time of renewal. Driver's abstract and federal criminal background check for drivers must be kept on file and available for inspection by a District Representative. The District must be notified of any changes in a driver's or monitor's federal criminal background check or the vendor could be held liable.
- C. All drivers shall be required to submit to drug testing. Vendor shall bear the cost of the physical examination of drivers together with any drug testing or other laboratory tests related to such examinations. Records must be available for inspection by a District Representative.
- D. Vehicles are not permitted to carry unauthorized persons.

E. Drivers must have valid picture identification at all times.

7. Vendor Compliance

- A. In the event that a Vendor fails to pick up one or more students for any particular event or scheduled trip, the cost of the substitute transportation shall be borne by the Vendor. The Cleveland Metropolitan School District reserves the right to terminate this agreement if the vendor fails to perform in accordance with any or all specifications.
- B. If participation in an event is cancelled due to late arrival or a no-show of transportation services, a fee will be accessed of up to three (3) times the estimated total cost of the trip.
- C. Cancellations Trips cancelled by a CMSD representative two (2) hours or more prior to the scheduled departure times are not subject to any fees. Trips cancelled by a CMSD representative less than two (2) hours prior to the scheduled departure time are entitled to a cancellation fee not to exceed 25% of the cost of the trip. This rule includes on the spot (at the place of departure) cancellations by any authorized school official.
- D. Vehicles arriving at the pick-up point more than 10 minutes late will be charged a fee equal to 10% of the cost of the trip, or one hour.
- E. Charges are in two parts: trip starting and ending time is from first pick up point to destination and return trip is from destination to last drop off point. No travel time allowance before or after will be chargeable and will not be paid. An authorized adult chaperone must be present on all trips and must ride with the students in the same vehicle. Vehicle will not be paid to stay at event unless authorized in writing by a CMSD representative. The actual start and end time and the school official's signature (acknowledgement) must be clearly noted on the log form or trip ticket, and submitted to Tran Planning. All trips lengths will be estimated by CMSD Transportation in advance of needed service.
- F. In case of an accident, the driver must report to the police (911), vendor office, and the CMSD Transportation Department at (216) 838-0955, (216) 838-0956 and/or (216) 838-0954. Any accident occurring after normal business hours should be reported to the CMSD Safety & Security Department (216) 838-7777. The Vendor must report all accidents/incidents/injuries to the Transportation Department immediately. A written report of the incident/accident/injury must be faxed within 5 hours to (216) 634-7025.
- G. CMSD will not pay a premium for any equipment substituted in lieu of original vehicle.

8. Bid Pricing

Provide firm bid pricing information with a breakdown of specific costs for services outlined in this RFP. Please include:

- A. A billable rate (hourly) for Coach Trips Monday Thursday
- B. A billable rate (hourly) for Coach Trips Friday/Saturday/Sunday
- C. A billable rate (hourly) for School Bus Trips Monday Thursday
- D. A billable rate (hourly) for School Bus Trips Friday/Saturday/Sunday

E. A billable rate (hourly) for School Bus Routes Monday – Friday

9. Exceptional Trips

Quotes will be sought for all exceptional trips as deemed necessary by CMSD Transportation Planning. All personnel and vehicle requirements as outlined in this document must also be met for the exceptional trips.

10. Invoicing and Billing

Only invoices for the actual transportation of students and listing agreed to pricing and required District information will be paid. Inclusion of additional costs (Ex: cleaning, maintenance, fuel charges, etc.) will be disallowed and cause delay in payment of the invoice. CMSD is only responsible for the costs of transporting students.

- A. The invoice must show the date, trip ID number, pick-up point, destination, time start (according to the Driver Trip Sheet), actual time start, time end, and number of passengers in each trip (detail and description). IMPORTANT: A copy of the Transportation Driver Trip Sheet (Attachment A) documented by a CMSD representative must be attached with the original invoice (Attachment B) or payment may be delayed. THERE IS TO BE NO DEVIATIONS FROM ATTACHMENT B OR PAYMENT WILL BE DELAYED. ATTACHMENT D IS THE ONLY ACCEPTABLE FORMAT ACCEPTED FOR INVOICING. There are to be NO deviations from the assigned route unless approved in writing by the Transportation Department
- B. A copy of the District's Tax Exempt Certificate will be furnished upon request of the vendor
- C. Send invoices and transportation log form to: Attn: Field Trip Billing, 3832 Ridge Road, Cleveland, Ohio 44144 for payment weekly. The Cleveland Metropolitan School District reserves the right to audit all transactions and to establish vendor response time. NO INVOICES SHOULD BE SENT DIRECTLY TO THE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE DEPARTMENT UNLESS REQUESTED BY THAT DEPARTMENT.

Section VIII: Cost Form

#21324 COST FORM

Vendor must use and complete the Proposal Forms included in this Proposal Package. No other forms will be accepted. Vendor also states that he/she will abide by all terms and conditions of the District as stated in this RFP, and that contractor will maintain the required insurance limits for the duration of the contract. Vendor agrees to hold pricing for a period of ninety (90) days from date of proposal opening. Pricing must be all-inclusive and cover every aspect of the work.

The undersigned proposes to provide transportation services for Cleveland Metropolitan School District in accordance with the Specifications and to the entire satisfaction of, and acceptance by, the District and for the following prices. The contract period is for three (3) years, with two (2) one year renewal options. The term of the Agreement will be from **October 1, 2021 to**September 30, 2024 pending authorization of funds at the discretion of the District. There are two renewal option for this agreement at the discretion of the District. Renewal Option 1 is for the 24-25 School Year (October 1, 2024 through September 30, 2025). Renewal Option 2 is for the 25-26 School Year (October 1, 2025 through September 30, 2026).

Proposal Pricing for: Providing Supplemental Transportation for Field Trips and Athletic Events – Coach Services

Coach Trins - October 1, 2021 to Sentember 30, 2022

october 1, 2021 to septemb	(C) 30, 2022
Hourly Rate – Monday –Thursday:	\$
Hourly Rate – Friday/Saturday/Sunday:	\$
School Bus Trips – October 1, 2021 to Sept	tember 30, 2022
Hourly Rate – Monday –Thursday:	\$
Hourly Rate – Friday/Saturday/Sunday:	\$
<u>School Bus Routes – October 1, 2021 to Se</u>	eptember 30, 2022
One route per day Monday - Friday	\$
Proposed Pricing Increase for Initial Term Pricing increases must be submitted in pe	Second Year 2022-2023 (Maximum 2%) ercentage form only. Inclusion of dollar figures may
result in proposals being found non-respon	
Percentage Increase for the 2022-2023 Ter (The proposed percentage will be applied t	
Proposed Pricing Increase for Initial Term	Third Year 2023-2024 (Maximum 2%)

Pricing increases must be submitted in percentage form only. Inclusion of dollar figures may

result in proposals being found non-responsive and rejected.
Percentage Increase for the 2023-2024 Term Period:% (The proposed percentage will be applied to the rates for the Initial Term)
Proposed Pricing Increase for Two (2) Optional Renewal Periods – 2024-2025 & 2025-2026
(Maximum 2%) Pricing increases must be submitted in percentage form only. Inclusion of dollar figures may result in proposals being found non-responsive and rejected.
Percentage Increase for the 2024-2025 Renewal Period:% (The proposed percentage will be applied to the rates for the Initial Term)
Percentage Increase for the 2025-2026 Renewal Period:% (The proposed percentage will be applied to the rates for the Initial Term)
Please complete the signatory requirement below
Company Name:
Representative:
(Print Name) (Title)
Signature: Date:
Address:
City: State: Zip:
Telephone No: () Fax No: ()

E-Mail Address:

Section IX: PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS & RESPONSE COMPONENTS & STRUCTURE

The specifications for RFP #21324 are described below. Vendors are required to provide the information below as well as complete the Required Purchasing Division documents located in Appendix A.

To ensure that all Proposals are evaluated in an equivalent fashion, Bidders must submit a Proposal that corresponds to the sequence and format outlined below. The Bidder should ensure that its Proposal clearly explains all issues and questions addressed in this Section. In responding, it is at the discretion of the Bidder to expand upon topics.

Any proposal not providing the required information, or not conforming to the format specified in this RFP, may be disqualified on that basis. Incomplete proposals or proposals submitted after the submission deadline may not be considered.

EACH PROPOSAL SHALL CONTAIN THE FOLLOWING SECTIONS:

- A. Transmittal Cover Letter
- B. Company Information / Executive Summary
- C. Experiences and References
- D. Business Stability
- E. Organization and Staff Capacity
- F. Security
- G. Service Delivery Plan
- H. Quality Assurance Plan
- I. Training Plan
- J. Proof of Insurability
- K. List of Exceptions
- L. Bid Pricing
- M. Additional Capabilities (If Applicable)
- N. All District Related Forms
 - a. Taxpayer ID
 - b. No Proposal Form (if applicable)
 - c. Certificate of Debarment
 - d. Conflict of Interest
 - e. Proposer Qualification Form
 - f. Non-Collusion Affidavit
 - g. DBE Forms- A, B, C, D, E, F & G
 - h. EOA Contractual Declaration Forms 1 &2
 - i. Employment Data Form
 - j. Addendum Acknowledgement
 - k. References

Section A: Transmittal Cover Letter

Prepare a letter transmitting the proposal on business letterhead. The letter should identify the business name, phone number, and business web address along with the name, phone number

and email address of the key contact person. The letter must have the signature of a person with authority to obligate the business. The transmittal letter shall also contain a statement that the proposal is a firm offer for a ninety (90) day period.

Section B: Company Information / Executive Summary

Provide information about your company. Include contact information and any other relevant information about the firm's history, structure, organizational metrics, and qualifications for fulfilling CMSD's requirements

Section C: Experiences and References

To demonstrate the company's experience with similar schools or larger schools, and experiences in the education sector, include:

- A. Summary Description of company and relevant experiences, as well as that of any strategic partners, if applicable.
- B. A list of reference clients served within the past five years (preferably schools); please include contact information (name, address, email, phone number).

Section D: Business Stability

To provide documentation of sufficient financial soundness and capacity to provide the services and carry out the contractor's requirements and obligations under this RFP and the subsequent contract, please provide:

- A. A company financial report for the most recent fiscal year, or explanation of unavailability and equivalent alternative financial documentation.
- B. Documentation of company legal operating status. Provide copies of all relevant certificates or disclosures.

Section E: Organization and Staff Capacity

To demonstrate how personnel will manage, supervise and perform the services and communicate with CMSD effectively to maintain a high standard of services, please include:

- A. Description of experience and qualifications of key personnel providing the services with clear explanation of personnel roles and responsibilities. Include personnel responsible for work order completion, hiring/training, employee management, quality assurance, issue resolution/customer service, billing, compliance and documentation. For all personnel, describe planned level of effort, anticipated duration of involvement and onsite availability, and tenure with the contractor.
- B. Description of management and reporting relationships. Provide detailed organizational chart.

Section F: Security

Information about the firm's policies, practices, and standards for maintaining the confidentiality and integrity of client's data, intellectual property, and trade secrets.

Section G: Service Delivery Plan

To demonstrate how the bidder will effectively perform the services specified in this RFP, while demonstrating understanding of CMSD's mission, values, and activities as a charter school network, please include:

- A. Description of how the bidder will provide all aspects of each service as specified; include detailed plan explaining how bidder will perform and document specific routine services with reference to the service requirements specified in this RFP.
- B. Bidder's staffing model (i.e., #of FTEs, shifts, etc.), staff allocation and scheduling of services provision; explain how staffing and scheduling will align with CMSD's schedule.
- C. If applicable, description of any additional services that will be provided at cost, by the contractor above and beyond the minimum basic services specified in this RFP.

Section H: Quality Assurance Plan

To demonstrate how the bidder will ensure quality of service, please include:

- A. Description of how the bidder will monitor, measure and ensure service quality, safety and reliability; include detail on bidder's methods/program quality assurance (e.g. work standards, inspections, resolution of unaccepted table work, staff timesheets, safety issues log, other relevant systems).
- B. Bidder's methods to document and ensure timeliness and responsiveness in addressing urgent, non-urgent, safety-related and/or non-safety related items as specified in this RFP and is identified at any time by CMSD.
- C. Bidder's methods to ensure and document required safety practices (e.g. Safety Plan).
- D. Descriptions of how the bidder will keep CMSD leadership and relevant staff informed of service quality, and maintain high customer service standards.

Section I: Training Plan

To demonstrate contractor's capacity and quality of training provided to employees, please include:

- A. Evidence and description of scope of bidder's formalized in-service training and educational programs and requirements for all employees, including a detailed list of orientation, training, subject and other ongoing job training subjects.
- B. Description of how the bidder will ensure effective employee recruiting and/or staff transition, and conduct employee training and safety programs

Section J: Proof of Insurability

To demonstrate contractor's ability of insurance obligations, please provide proof of insurance in the amounts outlined in the Insurance Requirements.

Section K: List of Exceptions

If applicable, submit a detailed list setting forth any requested exceptions, including explanations, to the RFP (i.e., of specific services that will not be provided by the bidder, and justifying reasons).

Section L: Bid Pricing

Provide firm bid pricing information with a breakdown of specific costs for services outlined in this RFP. Please include:

- F. A billable rate (hourly) for Coach Trips Monday Thursday
- G. A billable rate (hourly) for Coach Trips Friday/Saturday/Sunday
- H. A billable rate (hourly) for School Bus Trips Monday Thursday
- I. A billable rate (hourly) for School Bus Trips Friday/Saturday/Sunday
- J. A billable rate (hourly) for School Bus Routes Monday Friday

Section M: Additional Capabilities (if applicable)

If applicable, description of any other resources to be provided by the contractor which would enhance the contractor's ability to carry out the services (cost savings guarantees, etc.).

Section N: All District Related Forms

There are a number of REQUIRED forms identified in the RFP that must be completed by the service provider. These forms must be completed, signed as described in the text and included in the service provider response. These forms include:

- Taxpayer ID
- No Proposal Form (if applicable)
- Certificate of Debarment
- Conflict of Interest
- Proposer Qualification Form
- Non-Collusion Affidavit
- O DBE Forms- A, B, C, D, E, F & G
- EOA Contractual Declaration Forms 1 &2
- Employment Data Form
- Addendum Acknowledgement
- References

Section X: EVALUATION FACTORS

Mandatory Requirements:

Proposals will be evaluated, first, as responsive or non-responsive to the RFP's specifications. A preliminary review will be conducted of all proposals submitted on time to ensure the proposal adheres to the mandatory requirements specified in the RFP. Proposals that do not meet the mandatory requirements will be deemed non-responsive and may be rejected. In the event that all proposers do not meet one or more of the mandatory requirements, CMSD reserves the right to continue the evaluation of the proposals and to select the proposal(s) which most closely meets the requirements specified in the RFP. Responsive proposals to this RFP must include, or meet, the following mandatory requirements:

- 1. Timely Submission
- 2. Transmittal Cover Letter
- 3. Responses to proposal requirements
- 4. Experience and qualifications to provide the services
- 5. Cost proposals
- 6. Signature acknowledgement
- 7. References
- 8. Addendum Acknowledgement Form acknowledging all Addenda issued

Comparative Assessment:

After determining that a proposal satisfies the mandatory requirements stated in this RFP, the comparative assessment of the relative benefits and efficiencies of the proposal in relationship to the published evaluation criteria shall be made by using subjective judgment. The award of a contract resulting from this RFP shall be based on the lowest responsible bid <u>and</u> best proposal received in accordance with the evaluation criteria stated below:

35% - Cost of Services

25% - List of fully qualified Drivers assigned to this contract and the following items for each:

- A. Full name of driver (and monitor if assigned)
- B. Clear copy of current driver's license
- C. Clear copy of recent criminal background check (must be within prior six (6) months)
- D. Current yearly drivers abstract
- E. Clear copy of recent drug test (must be within prior three (3) months)
- F. Proof of physical (within last 6 months)
- G. Picture ID for Monitor/Attendant

20% - List of vehicles that will be used that includes:

- A. Make
- B. Model
- C. Year

- D. License Number
- E. Clearly Labeled for student transportation
- F. In vehicle telephone number
- G. Vehicle is equipped with working safety belts for each passenger and/or required safety equipment (harness; seat)
- H. Copies of PUCO or ASE Inspection Certificate

15% - Submission of all mandatory district documentation

5% - Previous satisfactory History with providing services to CMSD or other public school District

Evaluations are based on the submitted proposal. Follow-up discussions with the proposer's best suited to complete the work may be requested. CMSD reserves the right to interview or to seek additional information related to criteria already specified in the RFP after opening the proposals, but prior to entering into a contract, to reject any or all proposals, and to award a contract to one or multiple vendors as the District deems necessary to meet its objectives. The District also reserves the right to check references identified by any proposer from any vendor that submitted a proposal. CMSD will select the proposal(s) deemed to be most advantageous, with price and other criteria factors considered.

Cleveland Metropolitan School District (CMSD) reserves the right to reject any and all bids, or to waive any informalities, irregularities or technicalities in any proposal, should it deem to be in the best interest of CMSD to do so. The contract will be awarded, if at all, to the lowest responsible bidder meeting RFP specifications as determined by CMSD. Please note that the "lowest" cost bid is not the only consideration and the winning bidder may not be the "lowest" cost bid. Bids should be submitted on the premise that CMSD intends to contract as a multiple unit, and that the proposal must be acceptable to CMSD. While the financial responsibility of the bidder is a significant concern, CMSD is equally concerned with the proven ability of the bidder to satisfactorily perform the contract so that the service will be provided in accordance with RFP. CMSD reserves the option to award student transportation bus service to multiple vendors for all campus locations or each campus location may be awarded separately. As such please be sure to separate out cost of each campus location in your proposal.

Section XI: GENERAL TERMS & CONDITIONS

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS: The Contractor must adhere to all laws and policies of the State of Ohio and CMSD and shall observe and comply with all laws and regulations pertaining to Equal Employment Opportunity and Fair Employment Practices.

PERMITS, LICENSES & CERTIFICATIONS: Contractor will secure and maintain in force all required licenses, permits and certification to operate such business in the State of Ohio, as well as all local counties, townships, communities where service will be provided.

SUB-CONTRACTS: Contractors shall bid on all routes in connection with these specifications. It is unacceptable to CMSD for the company to sub-contract any portion of the routes to other contractors without written approval and agreement from CMSD.

HOLD HARMLESS CLAUSE: The Contractor will agree to indemnify, hold harmless and defend the CMSD Officers of the organization, the Board of Education, and all administrators, employees, agents, or servants of CMSD, against all suits, actions, legal proceedings, claims and demands, and against all damages, loss, costs, expenses and attorney's fees, in any manner, caused by, arising from, incidental to, connected with or growing out of the operation of a contract.

COLLUSIVE BIDDING: The Bidder certifies that their bid is made without any previous understanding, agreement or connection with any person, firm, or corporation making a bid for the same project, and is in all respects fair, without outside control, collusion, fraud, or otherwise illegal action.

PERSONNEL: Transportation vehicles shall not be operated by anyone other than a person holding the required license issued to him/her by the State of Ohio, and holding a school bus driver's license issued to him/her by the State of Ohio, driver shall follow the normal and usual instructions and requirements of CMSD and the CMSD schools, and shall at all time comply with the motor vehicle laws of the State of Ohio, and all cities, villages, or other municipalities in which such vehicles may be operated and shall present such reports to aid CMSD as requested. It is recognized that, for the protection of the children, drivers and all other persons coming in contact with the students must be of stable personality and of highest moral character. The responsibility for hiring and discharging personnel shall rest entirely upon the contractor. CMSD shall request in writing the removal of any driver from service who in their opinion is not suitable to operate a bus or provide service acceptable to CMSD. The Contractor shall underwrite all costs incurred to provide qualified drivers. Such costs shall include all training, background checks, physical examinations, license and permit fees, recruitment and any other related fees.

REQUIRED RECORDS: The Contractor shall maintain complete and accurate records of all trips provided and all miles traveled under this contract, all disciplinary actions, and such other reports the District may request and/or such other reports which may be required under all applicable laws.

EMERGENCY CANCELLATION OF TRANSPORTATION: The Contractor will follow CMSD procedures for emergency cancellation of transportation in those cases where weather conditions or other emergency conditions may preclude the movement of buses or be a safety concern.

CANCELLATION: In the event CMSD or Contractor shall willfully violate any of the covenants or duties imposed upon by an Agreement, such willful violation shall entitle the other party to terminate this Agreement. The party desiring to terminate for such cause shall give the contract defined appropriate written notice to remedy the violation. If at the end of such time the party notified has not removed the cause of complaint or remedied the purported violation, then this Agreement shall be deemed terminated. More information on cancelations can be found in Section 13: Term of Contract, Decrease of Service and Termination below.

CONTRACTOR NOT AN AGENT: The Contractor shall not be held or deemed in any way to be an agent, employee, or official of the District, but rather an independent Contractor furnishing transportation services for CMSD.

SUPERVISION OF LOADING AND UNLOADING: The Contractor agrees that the driver of each bus shall supervise the loading and unloading of his/her bus at all pick-up and delivery points and the Contractor will provide office operation for reporting transportation problems.

STUDENT MANAGEMENT: Rules and regulations regarding bus passenger discipline shall be given to each student and CMSD. When a passenger causes an undesirable situation on any bus, the driver shall report passenger's name and/or description of the situation to his supervisor, who shall, no later than the following day, turn in a report to CMSD. All vandalism damages to the Contractor's equipment or facilities will be the responsibility of the Contractor; however, CMSD will assist the Contractor in receiving reasonable restitution for damaged equipment when appropriate.

OPERATING EXPENSE: The Contractor shall provide and compensate its drivers and other personnel and pay all expenses pertaining to operating the buses, such as State license, oil, lubrication, tires, antifreeze, all repairs and maintenance, storage, washing, and fuel.

FUEL & FUEL STORAGE: The Contractor shall provide fuel for the operation of the buses under this contract. To provide the lowest fuel expense and greatest fuel economy, all buses provided by the Contractor for service under this contract must be powered by diesel engines. The Contractor will be responsible for compliance with all State and Federal Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) guidelines, rules and regulations concerning bulk fuel storage.

Section XII: PERFORMANCE BOND

There is not a performance bond requirement for this RFP or contract.

Attachment A: Transportation Driver Trip Sheet

Cleveland Metropolitan School District Oriver Trip Sheet Report

ATTACHMENT A

Trip Date:

07/01/2018

Trip Name:

Senate Varsity Football Team Game 1

Reason For Trip: Trip Type:

Contact Person:

Thursday, May 31, 2018 03.42 PM

Notes:

OHSAA Schale Championship Game Football

Trip ID: 1234 Account: ATHLETICS GLENVILLE

Page 1 of 1

CON Number:

Glenville poys Footbell team to participate in OHSAA Senate Championship Football Gamo

Vehicle: Vendor Driver:	Vendor	
Peace arrive at least 10 minutes prior to departure time Origin Location Glenville High School	650 E 113th St	Cleveland 44108
Start Date/Time:	Return Date/Time: Return to Origin: Estimated Passengers:	7/1/2018 19:00 126
Destination: Collinwood Athletic Complex	1070 E 152	nd St. CLEVELANI44110
Artive At Destination 7/1/2018 14:15	Leave Costnation:	7/1/2018 18:45
Odomoter Readings Start Return		
Tolls: 5SitTime:	Parking: \$	
Oriver Signature:	я	
Passengers have received emergency evacuation instructions:	A	<u> </u>
Teacher has verified that all passengers are accounted for:	х	

Attachment B: Sample Invoice

COMPANY NAME:

INVOICE DATE:

123 Anywhere Street

INVOICE #: CMSD18/19 -

Cleveland, Ohio 44114

ATTACHMENT B

Bill To: Cleveland Metropolitan School District

Transportation Department

3832 Ridge Road Cleveland, Ohio 44114

The invoice numbering outlined above is the only invoice numbering system that will be accepted. CMSD17/38(or current school year and -001 and so on as the year progresses and you invoice. Numbering must be sequential. Each school year the numbering system will start back over with 001. All the other information will remain constant, invoice date is the data that the invoice is sent or hand delivered to Ridge Road. It is not the date of the trip. There should be no deviation from this setup or payment will be delayed.

DESCRIPTION CMSD FIELD TRIPS	AMOUNT:
CMSD Trip ID #:	
(Complete CMSD Driver Trip Sheet for EACH vehicle used MUST be attached to Invoice for Payment along with all necessary signatures)	
Date of Service: # of Buses : # of Coaches: # of Coaches: # of CMSD Adults:	Example of Vendor Who Bills CMSD \$50.00/Hourly) 4hrs + 15 minutes X number of
TRIP INSTRUCTIONS:	vehicles
Pickup / Drop off Information:	\$200.00
	+ 12.50
Drop Off Time: Return for Pickup Time: -OR— Remain at Site for Duration of Event: (Start of Billing Time-End of Billing Time)	
(Start of Billing Time-End of Billing Time)	
Total # of Hours Billed to CMSD: (Additional minutes over the Hourly Rate MUST be billed in ¼ hour increments)	
Type of Activity:	
<u>COMMENTS</u> : If trip was cancelled, please write "CANCELLED" in the comments section. Also, write the date and time the vendor was contacted and the name of the person who cancelled the trip.	Grand Total \$212.50
EX: TRIP CANCELLED @ 1:20 pm on Thursday, Sept 24, 2009 by "name of CMSD Rep."	

Appendix A: District Related Forms

Required Purchasing Division Documents and Instructions

Section I: Addendum Acknowledgement Form for RFP #21324

Having read and examined the Request for Proposal Documents, including the specifications, prepared by the Cleveland Metropolitan School District for the above-referenced Project, and the following Addenda:

Addendum Number	Date of Receipt	
		
Proposer:		
Failing to acknowledge	a published Addendum may cause your bid to be rejected	
The undersigned Vendor proposes contract document for the propose	to perform all work for the applicable contract, in accordance of sums.	with the
	•	
Signature:	Date <u>:</u>	

Section II: Acknowledgement

(Name of Company)
Hereby acknowledges receipt of this Request for proposal and the reading of these Instructions to
Proposers. We further agree that if awarded the contract, we will submit the required Performance
Bond and Insurance Certificate within five (5) days of written notification that the District has adopted
a resolution authorizing the encumbrance of funds for the project. We understand, however, that a
formal written contract, similar to the one contained in the RFP Package, will need to be executed and
purchase order issued by the District before we have any vested contractual rights. Wherever, we
agree to commence the work as required herein and timely complete the project pursuant to the
Specifications by the date stated in the Notice to Proceed.
By:
(Name and Title)
Date:

Section III: Vendor Request Form

VENDOR INFORMATION

(IF APPLICABLE)					
VENDOR NAME					
ADDRESS LINE 1					
ADDRESS LINE 2					
CITY	_	STATE		ZIP	
TELEPHONE NO.		FAX NO	,		
	Area Code Number		Area Code	Number	
E-MAIL ADDRESS					
PRIMARY CONTACT	PERSON				
	REMIT TO (I	F DIFFERENT FROM A	ABOVE)		
			<u>-</u>		
VENDOR NAME					
ADDRESS LINE 1					
ADDRESS LINE 2			<u> </u>		
CITY		STATE			
TELEPHONE NO.		FAX NO			
	(Area Code) Number		(Area Code)	Number	
PRIMARY SERVICE, P	PRODUCT, OR SPECIALT	Υ:			
NOTE: VENDOR NA SERVICE.	AME AND TAX ID NUME	BER MUST BE AS FILEI	D WITH THE I	NTERNAL REVE	NUE
PLEASE INDICATE WI	HERE APPLICABLE				
DIVERSITY BUSINES	S ENTERPRISE:	YES	NO		
MINORITY BUSINES	SS ENTERPRISE:	YES	NO		
	-				
FEMALE BUSINESS I	FNTERDRISE:	YES	NO		
I LIVIALL DUSINESS I	LIVI LINT NIGE.	11.3	140		

PLEASE NOTE: FAILURE TO UTILIZE THE MOST CURRENT TAXPAYER ID FORM (DATED October 2018) MAY CAUSE YOUR RESPONSE TO BE REJECTED

Request for Taxpayer [Rev. October 2018] Department of the Treasury Internal Reviews Sentice Senting Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification Set to www.lrs.gov/FormW9 for Instructions and the latest Information.					reque	orm to ster. D to the I	o not
Name (as shown on your income tax return). Name is required on this line; do not leave this line blank.							
	2 Business name/o	lisregarded entity name, if different from above					
son page 3.	Check appropriate following seven to individual/solution indi	proprietor or C Corporation S Corporation Partnership	Trust/estate	4 Exempt certain en instruction	tities, not i is on page	ndividua 3):	
Print or type. Specific Instructions on	□ Limited liability company. Enter the tax classification (C=C corporation, S=S corporation, P=Partnership) ▶ ■ Note: Check the appropriate box in the line above for the tax classification of the single-member owner. Do not check LLC if the LLC is classified as a single-member LLC that is disregarded from the owner unless the owner of the LLC is another LLC that is not disregarded from the owner for U.S. federal tax purposes. Otherwise, a single-member LLC that			Exempt payee code (if any) Exemption from FATCA reporting code (if any)			
ecific p	is disregarded Other (see ins	ifrom the owner should check the appropriate box for the tax classification of its own tructions) ►	er.	(Applies to accounts maintained outside the U.S.)			
8	5 Address (number	, street, and apt. or suite no.) See instructions.	Requester's name a	nd address	(optional)		
Ø	6 City, state, and 2	IP code					
	7 List account num	ber(s) here (optional)					
Par		yer Identification Number (TIN)					
		propriate box. The TIN provided must match the name given on line 1 to avo individuals, this is generally your social security number (SSN). However, for		urity numb	er	_	
reside entitie	nt allen, sole prop s, it is your emplo	fletor, or disregarded entity, see the instructions for Part I, later. For other yer identification number (EIN). If you do not have a number, see How to get					
TIN, la		a more than one name, see the instructions for time 4. Also see Minet Alama	or and Employer	Idontificati	on numbe		_
		n more than one name, see the instructions for line 1. Also see What Name a quester for guidelines on whose number to enter.	and Empoyer	-			
Par	Certific	eation					

Under penalties of perjury, I certify that:

- 1. The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or I am waiting for a number to be issued to me); and
- 2. I am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I have not been notified by the internal Revenue Service (IRS) that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notified me that I am no longer subject to backup withholding; and
- 3. I am a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined below); and
- 4. The FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that I am exempt from FATCA reporting is correct.

Certification instructions. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup withholding because you have falled to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transactions, item 2 does not apply. For mortgage interest paid, acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to an individual retrement arrangement (IRA), and generally, payments other than interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the certification, but you must provide your correct TIN. See the instructions for Part II, later.

Sign signature of Here U.S. person ► Date ►

General Instructions

Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless otherwise noted.

Future developments. For the latest information about developments related to Form W-9 and its instructions, such as legislation enacted after they were published, go to www.irs.gov/FormW9.

Purpose of Form

An individual or entity (Form W-9 requester) who is required to file an information return with the IRS must obtain your correct taxpayer identification number (TIN) which may be your social security number (SSN), individual taxpayer identification number (TIN), adoption taxpayer identification number (ATIN), or employer identification number (EIN), to report on an information return the amount paid to you, or other amount reportable on an information return. Examples of information returns include, but are not limited to, the following.

. Form 1099-INT (Interest earned or paid)

- Form 1099-DIV (dividends, including those from stocks or mutual funds)
- Form 1099-MISC (various types of income, prizes, awards, or gross proceeds)
- Form 1099-B (stock or mutual fund sales and certain other transactions by brokers)
- . Form 1099-S (proceeds from real estate transactions)
- Form 1099-K (merchant card and third party network transactions)
- Form 1098 (home mortgage interest), 1098-E (student loan interest), 1098-T (tuition)
- Form 1099-C (canceled debt)
- Form 1099-A (acquisition or abandonment of secured property)
 Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person (including a resident allen), to provide your correct TIN.

If you do not return Form W-9 to the requester with a TIN, you might be subject to backup withholding. See What is backup withholding, later.

Cat. No. 10231X Form W-9 (Rev. 10-2018)

Section V: No Proposal Form

RFP #21324

This form must be completed only if vendor is not submitting a proposal

To all prospective bidders/proposers:

Each company or person receiving this package has at some point in time requested to be placed on the proposal list of the Cleveland Metropolitan School District for this product and/or service.

It is the intent of the District to update this list subsequent to the contract cycle. Please note the following and take action accordingly.

	king a bid/proposal this cycle, disregard the remainder active proposer list.	of this letter. Your name wil
	(1) If you are not making a bid/proposal this cycle, be active proposer's list for the future RFPs, place a checomplete the name and address section below as Purchasing at the address below.	neck mark in the box to the left
	(2) If you do not wish to remain on the active property to the left. Complete the name and address section to Purchasing at the address below.	•
Name of Compa	pany:	
Company Repre	resentative:	
Address:		
City, State:	Zi	p Code:
Telephone Num	mber:	
Fax Number:		
Date:		

Section VI: Certificate of Debarment



Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters Primary Covered Transactions

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension, 13 CFR Part 145. The regulations were published as Part VII of the May 26, 1988 Federal Register (pages 19160-19211). Copies of the regulations are available from local offices of the U.S. Small Business Administration.

(BEFORE COMPLETING CERTIFICATION, READ INSTRUCTIONS ON REVERSE)

- (1) The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
 - (a) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for disbarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
 - (b) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;
 - (c) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal, State, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1)(b) of this certification; and
 - (d) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application had one or more public transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or default.
- (2) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective primary participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

Business Name		
Date	Ву	Name and Title of Authorized Representative
		Signature of Authorized Representative

SBA Form 1623 (10-88)



This form was electronically produced by Elite Federal Forms, Inc.

Section VI: Certificate of Debarment Pg. 2

- 2 -

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

- 1. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective primary participant is providing the certification set out below
- 2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial of participation in this covered transaction. The prospective participant shall submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification set out below. The certification or explanation will be considered in connection with the department or agency's determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in this transaction.
- 3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when the department or agency determined to enter into this transaction. If is is later determined that the prospective primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency may terminate this transaction for cause or default.
- 4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the department or agency to which this proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.
- 5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and "voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549. You may contact the department or agency to which this proposal is submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations (13 CFR Part 145).
- 6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency entering into this transaction.
- 7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion--Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by the department or agency entering into this covered transaction, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.
- 8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and frequency by which it determines the ineligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List.
- 9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.
- 10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

Section VII: Conflict of Interest Form

Statement of Potential Conflicts of Interest

	To:			
Vendor Name:	Primary Contact:			
Address 1:	Telephone #:			
Address 2:	Fax #:			
City:	Email:			
State, Zip:	Website:			
 opinion of the Ohio Ethics Commission. As such declaring any potential conflicts of interest in following two questions providing all requested 1. Are any current Cleveland Metropolitan Sc Education members, or any of their immediate 	adheres to Ohio Ethics Law and strictly follows the n, each vendor is requested to submit this statement doing business with the District. Please answer the information. hool District (CMSD) employees, Cleveland Board of liate family members, also members of the vendor's with the vendor, or own any shares of any stock issued			
Yes	No			
	member, or immediately family member is a member ffice with the vendor, please state the person's name			
Position:				
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	member, or immediate family member owns share of ny, state the percentage of all outstanding company member.			
_	%			
Are any current CMSD employees, CMSD bo employees of the vendor?	ard members, or any immediate family members also			
Yes	No			
If Yes, please state the person's name and provi	de a description of their job duties for the provider:			
Name:				

If **Yes**, please describe the contact that the vendor will have with the CMSD employee or CMSD board member in the course of providing services to the District:

CERTIFICATION

I do hereby certify that the foregoing statements are true and accurate, and that my signature below attests to the authenticity of my identity as the person actually signing this form. This document is not a contract. In order for a binding Agreement to exist, a signed Agreement will be required prior to any legally binding commitment by the District.

NOTARIZED STATEMENT

	being	g duly sworn and deposes	says
hat he/she is the			of
	(title)		
	(organization)	_, and answers to all the	
oregoing question	s and all statements therein contained a	re true and correct.	
	(signature)		
	Subscribed and sworn before me this _	day of	, 20
lotary Public:			
Av commission ex	nires:		

Section VIII: Proposer Qualifications Form

Proposer must answer all questions or attach a written explanation for each question.

PR	OPOSER	NAME	E:	
ΑC	DRESS:_			
CC	ONTACT I	PERSO	DN:	
ТІТ	ΓLE:			
TE	LEPHON	E: () TOLL FREE: ()
TΑ	XPAYER	IDENT	TIFICATION NUMBER:	
1.	What t	type of	f organization? (i.e. corporation, partnership, etc.)	
2.	How m	nany ye	rears has your organization been in business?	
3.	How m	nany ye	rears has your organization been in business under	its current name?
4.	List an	y othei	er aliases your organization has utilized in the last tv	vo years and the form of Business
5.	If you a	are cur	rrently a corporation, list the following:	
	a.	State	e of incorporation	
	b.	Date	e of incorporation	
	C.	Presi	ident's name	
	d.	Secre	etary's name	
	e.	Treas	surer's name	
	f.	Statu	utory agent's name	

	h. Principal place of doing business
6.	If you are currently in a partnership, list the following: a. Name and address of all general and limited partners.
	b. Original name and date of organization's inception
7.	If you are neither a corporation nor a partnership, please describe your organization and list principals.
8.	Are you legally qualified to do business in the State of Ohio?
9.	Are you legally qualified to do business in Cuyahoga County and licensed by the City of Cleveland?
10.	Has your organization ever been (i) declared by a customer to be in default under a contractor and/or (ii) sued by a customer for failure to completely a contract or properly perform services in a timely manner? If yes, please state where, when, and why.
11.	Has your organization ever been cited by a local, county, state, or federal authority for violation of a regulation or statute or failing to timely complete a contract in accordance with specifications? I yes, please state date, agency, and final disposition.
12.	Has your organization ever filed for bankruptcy? If yes, please state where, when and why?
13.	On a separate sheet, list the major customers for whom your organization has provided this type of equipment or service in the past five years. Include owner's name and type of work performed
14.	Has your organization ever been sued by a supplier for failure to timely pay for materials of equipment provided? If yes, please provide details.
15	What is the dollar limit of your firm's General (CLS) Liability Insurance?

g. Name of shareholders, if less than 10

	Name of insuring company:
	Policy number:
16	. What is the dollar limit of your firm's Automotive Liability Insurance?
	Owned vehicles
	Non-Owned vehicles
	Name of insuring company
	Policy number
17.	. List the name and address of every person having an interest in this RFP.
18	. Has any federal, state or local government entity ever cited or taken any action against you organization or any of its principals for failure to pay or remit any taxes including but not limited to income, withholding, sales, franchise, or personal property taxes? If yes, please give name or agency, date and amount of taxes overdue and resolution of the issue.
19	. Is your organization and its' principals current in payment of personal property taxes?
20	. The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by submission of this RFP, that neither it nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed, for debarment or suspension, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any State and/or Federal Department or Agency.
21	. Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective participants shall attach an explanation to this RFP.

Notarized Statement

	bei	ing duly sworn and deposes says
that he/she is the		of
	(title)	
		, and answers to all the
(organization)		
foregoing questions and all statements the	erein contained	d are true and correct.
(signatu	ire)	
Subscribed and sworn before me this	day of	, 20
Notary Public:		
My commission expires:		

Section IX: State of Ohio Insurance

Sample: State Of Ohio Insurance

SAMPLE

STATE OF OHIO

DEPARTMENT OF INSURANCE

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE

As Superintendent of Insurance of the State of Ohio, I
do hereby certify that
a corporation located at
in the State of
with the laws of this state applicable to it, and is
authorized to transact in this state its appropriate
business of insurance as prescribed under Section 3941.02.
of Ohio, including Fidelity Insurance.
om20, until

In witness whereof, I have hereunto subscribed my name and caused my seal to be affixed at Columbus, Ohio this day and date.

Superintendent of Insurance of Ohio

Section X: Sample Certificate of Liability Insurance

Sample: Acord Certificate of Insurance

A			CATE OF LIA						(MM/DD/YYYY)
BE	IIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A ERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMA ELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF IN EPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, A	ISURAN	CE DOES NOT CONSTIT						
IMI ter	PORTANT: If the certificate holder ms and conditions of the policy, rtificate holder in lieu of such endo	is an A	DDITIONAL INSURED, the	policy(iendorsem	es) must be ent. A stat	endorsed. I ement on th	f SUBROGATION IS WA	IVED, s	subject to the rights to the
PROD		, comen	(0).	CONTA	СТ				
				PHONE	- F-W		FAX (A/C, No)		
				E-MAIL ADDRE			[A/C, No	:	
						SURER(S) AFFO	RDING COVERAGE		NAIC#
				INSURE					NAIC#
INSUR	ED			INSURE	RB:				
				INSURE	RC:				
				INSURE	RD:				
				INSURE					
COV	ERAGES CEI	TIEICA	TE NUMBER:	INSURE	RF:				
THI	S IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIE	S OF IN	SURANCE LISTED BELOW H	AVE BEE	N ISSUED T	THE INCHE	REVISION NUMBER:	TI 100 00	
CEF EXC	ICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY R RTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY CLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH TYPE OF INSURANCE	PERTAI POLICIE	N, THE INSURANCE AFFOR S. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAV	N OF AN	THE POLICIE REDUCED BY	OR OTHER	DOCUMENT WITH RESP		
LTR	GENERAL LIABILITY	INSR W	/D POLICY NUMBER		PÓLICY EFF (MM/DD/YYYY)	(MM/DD/YYYY)	LIMI	rs	
F	COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY						EACH OCCURRENCE DAMAGE TO RENTED	\$	
	CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR						PREMISES (Ea occurrence)	\$	
							MED EXP (Any one person)	\$	
				1			PERSONAL & ADV INJURY	\$	
C	SEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:						GENERAL AGGREGATE	\$	
	POLICY PRO- JECT LOC						PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG	\$	
A	UTOMOBILE LIABILITY						COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT (Ea accident)		
	ANY AUTO			1			BODILY INJURY (Per person)	S	
	ALL OWNED SCHEDULED AUTOS NON-OWNED						BODILY INJURY (Per accident)	\$	
-	HIRED AUTOS NON-OWNED AUTOS						PROPERTY DAMAGE (Per accident)	\$	
_	<u> </u>							s	
-	UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR						EACH OCCURRENCE	\$	
-	EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE			Ì			AGGREGATE	\$	
w	DED RETENTIONS VORKERS COMPENSATION	-					Two owners to the	\$	
A	ND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY NY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE Y/N			Î			WC STATU- OTH- TORY LIMITS ER		
0	FFICE/MEMBER EXCLUDED?	N/A		-			E.L. EACH ACCIDENT	\$	
If	yes, describe under						E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE	\$	
-	ESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below				-		E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT	\$	
ESCRI	PTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICL	ES (Attac	h ACORD 101, Additional Remarks	Schedule,	f more space is	required)			
						,,,			
									3
							appeared the control of the control		
ERT	IFICATE HOLDER			CANCE	LLATION				
				THE	EXPIRATION	DATE THE	ESCRIBED POLICIES BE C REOF, NOTICE WILL I PROVISIONS.	ANCELL BE DEL	ED BEFORE LIVERED IN
				AUTHORI	ZED REPRESEN	TATIVE	***		
					0.45-	0.0046			
	D 25 (2010/05)				© 198	8-2010 ACO	RD CORPORATION. A	II right	s reserved.

46

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

ACORD 25 (2010/05)

Section XI: Non-Collusion Affidavit

This Affidavit must be executed and shall accompany the proposal in order for the proposal to be considered.

NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT State of Ohio, Cuyahoga County

	State of Onio, Cuyanoga County
	, being first duly sworn, deposes and says that
he/she is	of
said proposer has no or person, to put in a in any manner, direct with any person, to f cost element of said Board of Education of the proposal; and that has not, directly or in	he foregoing proposal; that such proposal is genuine and not collusive or sham; that t colluded, conspired, connived, or agreed, directly or indirectly, with any proposer sham proposal, or that such other person shall refrain from proposing, and has not tly or indirectly sought by agreement or collusion, or communication or conference, ix the proposal price of affiant or any other proposer, to fix any overhead, profit or proposal price, or of that of any proposer, or to secure any advantage against the f the Cleveland Metropolitan School District, or any person or persons interested in at all statements contained in said proposal are true; and further that such proposer directly, submitted this proposal, or the contents thereof, or divulged information eto to any Association or to any member or agent thereof.
	Affiant
Sworn t	to and subscribed before me this day of, 20
	Notary Public in and for Cuyahoga County, Ohio
	My commission expires:

Section XII: Diversity Business Enterprise Program and Participation Forms

PROGRAM OVERVIEW

It is the goal of the Diversity Business Enterprise (DBE) program to ensure the firms owned and/or controlled by minorities and women have the opportunity to compete for any expenditure of funds including but not limited to contracts, lease purchase, requisitions, and all forms of equipment, work services, materials, construction, etc.

The DBE program shall make every good faith effort to ensure that certified DBE's in the relevant Cleveland Municipal School District geographic market have the maximum opportunity to proposal for contracts. The Cleveland Municipal School District geographic market is Cuyahoga, Summit, Lake, and Lorain counties.

The District has established goals for DBE participation in all contracts that it awards. The goals range from 15 to 30 percent and vary by the type of contract awarded:

- > 15% Service Contracts
- ➤ 20% Goods and Supplies
- ➤ 30% Maintenance/Construction Repair

A Diversity Business Enterprise encompasses Minority Business Enterprises (MBEs) and Female Business Enterprises (FBEs)

A DBE is an enterprise in which minorities, African Americans, Native Americans, Hispanic or Latin Americans, Asian Pacific Islander Americans, and/or women own at least 51% of the shares of stock or controlling interest.

A FBE is a female-owned enterprise with at least 51% of the shares of stock or controlling interest, which is held by female.

A company may be in compliance with the District's DBE program although the applicable numerical goal is not met if a company makes a good faith commitment to comply with DBE regulations. The Purchasing Director determines whether a company has made a good faith commitment.

DBE requirements under certain circumstances can be waived by the district with convincing proof of good faith efforts.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF NOTICE AND REQUIREMENTS TO ENSURE DIVERSITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE) OPPORTUNITY

Definition of DBE: A Diversity Business Enterprise (DBE)

"Small Diversity business concern" means a small business concern that is at least fifty-one (51) percent unconditionally owned by one or more individuals who are both socially and economically diverse, or a publicly owned business that has at least fifty-one (51) percent of its stock unconditionally owned by one or more socially and economically diverse individuals and that has its management and daily business controlled by one or more such individuals. This term also means a small business concern that is at least

fifty-one (51) percent unconditionally owned by an economically diverse Indian tribe or Native Hawaiian Organization, or a publicly owned business that has at least fifty-one (51) percent of its stock unconditionally owned by one of these entities, that has its management and daily business controlled by members of an economically diverse Indian tribe or Native Hawaiian organization.

- 1. "Socially diverse individuals" means individuals who have been subjected to racial or ethnic prejudice or culture bias because of their identity as a member of a group without regard to their qualities as individuals.
- 2. "Economically diverse individuals" means socially diverse individuals whose ability to compete in the free enterprise system is impaired due to diminished opportunities to obtain capital and credit as compared to others in the same line of business who are not socially diverse. Individuals who certify that they are members of named groups (African Americans, Hispanic Americans or Latin Americans, Native Americans, Asian-Pacific Islander Americans, Subcontinent Asian Americans) are to be considered socially and economically diverse.

<u>Definition of FBE: Female Business Enterprise (FBE)</u>

"Female-owned small business concern" means a small business concern:

- 1. Which is at least fifty-one (51) percent owned by one or more women; or, in the case of any publicly owned business, at least fifty-one (51) percent of the stock of which is owned by one or more women and;
- 2. Whose management and daily business operations are controlled by one or more woman.

TERMS

- 1. DBE participation will be counted toward meeting the goals outlined in the notice as follows:
 - a. The total dollar value of a correct contract or subcontractor indirect subcontract awarded toward a certified DBE will be counted toward the applicable goal.
 - b. In the case of a joint venture, certified by the Cleveland Municipal School District, the portion of the total dollar value of the contract equal to the percentage of the ownership and control of the DBE partner in the join vendor will be counted toward the applicable goal. (PLEASE RETURN DBE FORM E)
 - c. Only expenditures to DBE that perform a commercially useful function in the work of a contract or subcontract or indirect subcontract will be counted toward DBE goals. A DBE is considered to perform a commercially useful function when it is responsible for execution of a distinct element of work of a contract or subcontract and carries out its responsibilities by actually performing, managing, and supervising the work involved. If a DBE contractor subcontracts a significantly greater portion of the work of the contract than would be expected on the basis of normal industry practices, the DBE is presumed not to be performing a commercially useful function. The DBE may present evidence to rebut this presumption.
 - d. The total dollar value of materials and supplies obtained from DBE suppliers and manufacturers will be counted toward DBE goals if the DBE assumes the actual and contractual responsibility for the provision of the materials and supplies.

- 2. A proposer who fails or refuses to complete and return this Notice may be deemed a non-responsive proposer.
- 3. The contractor's goals as set forth in this Notice shall express the contractor's commitment to the percentage of DBE utilization during the term of this contract. The contract shall be deemed to have met its commitment for DBE utilization if the DBE utilization rate of the contractor meets the goals established by this Notice.
- 4. The contractor must receive the approval of the District before making substitutions for any subcontractors listed in the Notice. Substitution of DBE is not allowed unless the contractor receives District approval.
- 5. The contractor's commitment to a specific goal is to meet the DBE objectives and is not INTENDED and shall not be used to discriminate against any qualified company or group or companies.
- 6. The contractor's commitment to a specific goal for DBE utilization as required by this Notice shall constitute a commitment to make every good faith effort to meet such goal by a subcontracting to or undertaking to joint venture with DBE firms. If the contractor fails to meet the goal, it will carry the burden of furnishing sufficient documentation as part of the proposal response of its good faith efforts to justify a grant of relief from the goals set forth in this Notice. Such justification will take the forms of a detailed report which will document at least the following information:
 - a. Attendance at the pre-proposal meeting, if any, scheduled by the District to inform DBE's of Subcontracting opportunities under a given solicitation.
 - b. Advertisement in general circulation media, trade association publications, and minority-focus media for at least twenty (20) days before bids or proposals are due. If twenty (20) days are not available, publication for a shorter reasonable time is acceptable.
 - c. Written notification to DBE that their interest in the contract is solicited, and follow-up contact to determine whether the DBE's were interested.
 - d. Efforts made to select portions of the proposed work to be performed by DBE in order to increase the likelihood of achieving the stated goals.
 - e. Efforts to negotiate with DBE for specific sub-proposal, including at a minimum:
 - i. The names, addresses, and telephone numbers of DBE's that were contacted.
 - ii. A description of the information provided to DBE regarding the plans and specifications for portion of the work to be performed; and
 - iii. A statement of why additional agreements with DBE were not reached.
 - iv. Completion of (Form E) if DBE's are not involved in the RFP.
 - f. Concerning each DBE the supplier/contractor contacted but rejected as unqualified, the reasons for the supplier's/contractor's conclusion.
 - g. Efforts made to help the DBE's contacted that needed assistance in obtaining required bonding, lines of credit, or insurance.
 - h. Use of the services of minority community organizations, minority contractor's groups,

governmental minority business assistance offices, and other organizations that assist in the recruitment and placement of DBE's.

- 7. Suppliers/contractors that fail to meet DBE goals and fail to demonstrate sufficient good faith efforts are not eligible for contract awarded.
- 8. The District, through its Diversity Officer will review the contractor's minority business enterprise involvement efforts during performance of this contract. Such review will include, but not be limited to, contractor's quarterly statement of income from the District and what portion of said income went to the DBE enterprise(s) as evidenced by affirmation of the DBE enterprise(s) which the contractor hereby agrees to supply each quarter during the term of its contract with the District. If the contractor meets its goal or if the contractor demonstrates that every reasonable effort has been made to meet its goal, the contractor shall be presume to be in compliance. Where the Diversity Officer finds that the contractor shall be presume to be in compliance. Where the Diversity Officer finds that the contractor has failed to comply with the requirements of this Notice, said Diversity Officer shall inform the Purchasing Director who shall immediately notify the contractor to take corrective action. If the contractor fails or refuses to comply promptly, then the Purchasing Director, upon approval of the District, shall issue an order shopping all or part of the work until satisfactory corrective action has been taken. No part of the time lost due to any such stop orders shall be made subject of claim for extension of time or for excess costs or damages by the contractor. When the District proceeds with such formal action it has the burden of proving that the contractor has not met the requirements of coming forward and showing that it has met the good faith requirements of the Notice, specifically including paragraph 7 hereof. Where the contractor is found to have failed to exert every good faith effort to involve DBE in the work provided, the District may declare that the contractor is ineligible to receive further District funds, whether as a contractor, subcontractor, or as a consultant, for a period of up to three (3) years.
- 9. The contractor will keep records and documents for three (3) years following performances of this contract to indicate compliance with this Notice. These records and documents, or copies thereof, will be made available at reasonable times and places for inspection by any authorized representative of the District upon request together with any other compliance information which such representative may require.
- 10. Proposers and contractors are bound by all requirements, terms and conditions of this Notice.
- 11. Nothing in this Notice shall be interpreted to diminish the present contract compliance review

1: DBE Form A

Name of Firm:
Address:
City, State, Zip Code:
Telephone Number:
Type of Business (Product or Service):
Date of Proposed Contract Award:
Amount of Proposed Contract Award:
Diversity Business Enterprise Subcontractor(s):
Dollar Amount Subcontract Award:
Percent of Subcontract Award:
D.B.E. Participation:\$
F.B.E. Participation: \$
Name of EEO Officer:
(Signature of owner, partner, or authorized officer)
Name: Dated:
Title:
DO NOT COMPLETE BELOW THIS LINE
CompliantCompliance PendingNon-Compliant
Compliance Date:
(signature, DBE Department) (date)

2: DBE Form B

NOTICE OF REQUIREMENT TO ENSURE DIVERSITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE) OPPORTUNITY

Note: All eligible proposers for award of the contract should comply with the Requirements, Terms, and Conditions of this Notice.

The undersigned proposer hereby agrees that the goal it has established for DBE participation in this project through either subcontracting or entering into a joint Venture with DBEs in conformity with the Requirements. Terms and Conditions of this Notice is a goal of thirty (30%) percent for a construction/repair/ maintenance contract, twenty (20%) percent for a supply contract, and fifteen (15%) for a service contract of the total contract amount of this project. In no event will the absence of goals as stated above be deemed as compliance with the requirements, terms and conditions of this notice.

In addition, the undersigned will complete and attach hereto the DBE (Form C) Schedule for DBE participation, showing all DBE/FBE that will participate as subcontractors or joint ventures in this contract and a DBE (Form D), DBE Letter of Intent form for each DBE/FBE listed on the Schedule.

Proposer:	 	
Date:	 	
Ву:	 	
Title:	 	

<u>Definition of DBE: A Diversity Business Enterprise (DBE)</u>

"Small Diversity business concern" means a small business concern that is a least (51) percent unconditionally owned by one or more individuals who are both socially and economically diverse, or a publicly owned business that has at least (51) percent of its stock unconditionally owned by one or more socially and economically diverse individuals and that has its management and daily business controlled by one or more such individuals. This term also means a small business concern that is at least (51) percent unconditionally owned by an economically diverse Indian tribe or Native Hawaiian Organization, or a publicly owned business that has least (51) percent of its stock unconditionally owned by one of these entities, that has its management and daily business controlled by members of an economically diverse Indian tribe or Native Hawaiian Organization.

3: DBE Form C

SCHEDULE MBE/FBE PARTICIPATION

Project Name:
Name of Non-DBE Contractor:
Identification Number:
Location:
Name of Minority Contractor:
Address:
City, State, Zip:
Type of work to be performed and work hours involved:
Projected commencement and completion dates for work:
Agreed price in dollars or percentage:
The undersigned will enter into a formal agreement with DBE for work listed in this schedule conditioned upon execution for a contract with the Cleveland Municipal School District
TO BE RETURNED WITH THE PROPOSAL
Signature of Non-DBE Prime Contractor
Date:

4: DBE Form D

DBE LETTER OF INTENT

To:
NON-DRE DRIME OR GENERAL DRODOSER
NON-DRE DRIME OR GENERAL DRODOSER
The Undersigned intends to perform work in connection with the above-referenced project as (check one):
an individual a corporation a partnership a joint venture
DBE status of the undersigned is confirmed in the Cleveland Municipal School District's DBE file of bona fide enterprises with a certification date of:
The Undersigned is prepared to perform the following described work in connection with the above referenced project. Specify in detail particular work items or parts thereof to be performed:
at the following price or percent of contract: \$
You have projected the following commencement date of such work, and the undersigned is projecting
completion of such work as follows:
Items Projected Commencement Date
Projected Completion Date
% (percent) of the dollar value of the subcontract will be sublet and/or awarded to NON-DBE contractor (s) and/or NON-FBE SUPPLIERS. The undersigned will enter into a form agreement for the above work with you conditioned upon your execution of a contract with the Clevelar Municipal School District.
Date Name of DBE Firm (where applicable)
Signature of DBE (where applicable) Signature of MBE Firm
(TO BE RETURNEDWITH RFP)

5: DBE Form E

DBE Unavailability Certification

ı, Name	,
Of	, certify that on
	Date a Proposal for work items to be performed on:
Board Project:	
Minority Contractor:	
Work Items Sought:	
Form of Proposal Sought:	
Female Contractor:	
Work Items Sought:	
Form of Proposal Sought:	
the unavailability due to lack of agreement proposal for the following reason (s):	said minority business enterprise was unavailable (exclusive of ent on price) for work on this project or unable to prepare a
Signature, Non-DBE prime Proposer	Date
	red an opportunity to proposal on the above-referenced work or by
Date	Non-DBE Prime Proposer
The above statement is a true and accur	rate account of why I did not submit a Proposal on this project.
Signature, Non-DBE prime Proposer	

6: DBE Form F

Non-Minority Prime Affidavit For DBE

STATE OF }

COUNTY OF	} SS.		AFFIDAVIT		
information necessintended participate to provide to the regarding actual susubcontract arrange the subcontract or the Cleveland Mu	sary to identify a cion by each party Cleveland Munici bcontract work a gements and to po those of each pa unicipal School E ntract which may	the foregoing statement and explain the items at in the undertaking. Further in the payments there ermit the audit and example in the sub District. Any material is be awarded and for in	ind operation rther, the und rent, complet of, and any pr mination of tl contract, by a misrepreser	of our subcontral lersigned covenance, and accurate it coposed changes in the books, records outhorized representation will be g	act and the t and agree information any of the and files of entatives of rounds for
Name of Firm:					
Signature:					
Name and Title:					
Date:					
STATE OF COUNTY OF SS.	}				
On this	_day of	2	0, befo	re me appeared _	
		, to me person	ally known, w	ho being duly swo	orn,
did execute the for	egoing affidavit,	and did state that they	were properl	y authorized by _	
		to execute the affidavit	and did so as	their free act and	l deed.
(Seal)					
Notary Public					

Commission expires_____

7: DBE Form G

This form need not be completed if all join venture firms are diversity business enterprises

1.	Nar	ne d	of Joint Venture:						
2.	Add	lres	s of Joint Venture:						
3. Phone Number of Joint Venture:									
4.			y the firms which comprise this joint venture. (The DBE partner must complete DBE Forn ive current DBE Certification)						
		a.	Describe the roll of the DBE firm in the joint venture:						
		b.	Describe briefly the experience and business qualifications of each non-DBE Joint Venture:						
5.	Nat	 ure	of Joint Venture's Business:						
6.	Pro	vide	e a copy of the Joint Venture Agreement.						
7.	Wh	at is	s the percentage of DBE Ownership? DBE% FBE%						
8.			ship of Joint Venture: (This need not be completed if described in the Joint Venture nent provided in response to question 6).						
		a.	Profit and loss sharing:						
		b.	Capital contributions, including equipment:						
		 с.	Other applicable ownership interest:						

ncludi	ng, but r	not limited to, those prime responsibility form:
a.	Financi	ial decisions:
b.	Manag	gement decisions, such as:
	i.	Estimating:
	ii.	Marketing and Sales:
	iii.	Hiring and firing of management personnel:
	_	
	iv.	Purchasing of major items or supplies:
	-	
c.	Superv	vision of field operations:

9. Control of and participation in this contract. Identify by name, race, and "firm" those individuals and their titles who are responsible for day-to-day management and policy decision making,

Note: If after complete the DBE Form B and before the completion of the joint venture's work on any contract awarded, there is any significant change in the information submitted, the joint venture must inform the Cleveland Municipal School District, either directly or through the non-DBE prime subcontractor if the joint vendor is a subcontractor.

8: DBE Form H

Non-Minority Prime Affidavit (Joint Venture)

STATE OF OHIO

CUYAHOGA COUNTY

AFFIDAVIT

The undersigned swear that the forgoing statements are correct and include all material information necessary to identify and explain the items and operation of our subcontract and the intended participation by each joint venture in the undertaking. Further, the undersigned covenant and agree to provide to the Cleveland Municipal School District current, complete, and accurate information regarding actual joint venture work and the payments thereof and any proposed changes in any of the subcontract arrangements and to permit the audit and examination of the books, records and files of the joint venture or those of each party relevant to the joint venture, by authorized representatives of the Cleveland Municipal School District. Any material misrepresentation will be grounds for terminating any contract which may be awarded and for initiating action under federal and state laws concerning false statements.

Name of Firm (Prime)		Name of Firm (DBE)			
Signature		Signature			
Name and Title		Name and Title			
Date					
STATE OF] COUNTY OF	JSS.			
On this	day of	20 , before me appeared e personally known, who being duly sworn, did execute			
the foregoing affi	davit, and did state	e that they were properly authorized by the affidavit and did so as their free act and deed.			
(Seal)	Notary Pub	olic			
	Commissio				

Section XIII: EOA Contractual Declaration Forms

CMSD Affirmative Action Program

Vendor Contract Compliance, Procedures and Guidelines

Note: Please read carefully all of the information contained in these documents.

Pursuant to the Affirmative Action Policy Adopted by the Cleveland Municipal School District, the following guidelines and procedures will be implemented to ensure that all vendors doing business with the District are in compliance with Equal Employment Opportunity Standards.

A. SUBMISSION OF VENDOR EMPLOYMENT PRACTICE REPORT

All vendors and contractors who propose to provide goods, services, supplies, and equipment through formal proposals, informal proposals, and contract term agreements are required to submit a Vendor Employment Practice Report with each Proposal. Approved status by the Vendor Employment Practice Report includes the following documents which <u>must be completed in their entirety and returned with the proposal.</u>

Please note, compliance approval consists of both DBE and Vendor Contract Compliance approval.

- 1. <u>General Information Sheet (Form 1)</u>: Provides basic information on the vendor.
- 1a. <u>SMSA/OR RECRUITMENT AREA</u>: Indicates the relevant labor area in which your facility is located. <u>Designate</u> the <u>Standard Metropolitan Statistical Area</u>, county, or city from which the facility can draw applicants or recruit for most positions.

In making relevant labor area determinations, examine the statistics on racial, ethnic, and gender composition of the Standard Metropolitan Statistical Area, county, or city surrounding your organization, as well as other appropriate adjacent areas.

The relevant labor area should be the SMSA county or city with the highest population of minorities and women.

- 1b. <u>DEFINITION:</u> As defined by the U.S. Bureau of the Census, SMSA is: "Except in the New England States, a county or group of contiguous counties which contains at least one city of 50,000; in addition contiguous counties if they are socially and economically integrated within the central city; in the New England States towns and cities instead of counties. Each SMSA must include at least one central city."
- Compliance Declaration Form (Form 2) The Agreement indicating the vendor is in compliance
 with Equal Employment Opportunity requirements, will take affirmative action, and will comply
 with all Fair Labor Standard practices.
- 3. **Current Employment Data Form** (Form 3) Current personnel data indicating employees in each job category classified by gender and race.
- 4. **Existing Affirmative Action Program** If any and copies of any agreement between the vendor and the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, Office of Federal Contract Compliance Program or court order pertaining to equal employment opportunity.

B. EVALUATION OF COMPLIANCE DATA

- The Diversity Officer will evaluate data submitted by vendors who are recommended to receive District proposals and contracts. Vendors found in compliance with the District's Equal employment opportunity standards (Affirmative Action and DBE Program) will be placed on the approved vendor's list.
- 2. In the event that a vendor is found not in compliance with the District's equal employment opportunity standards, the Diversity Officer will inform the Purchasing Director of the Reason(s) and ask that the Purchasing Director not award the contract or proposal to the vendor pending compliance. The Purchasing Director of Manager of Diversity will inform the vendor of reason(s) for non-compliance. Vendors found not in compliance will be given ten (10) business days from the time of notification by the Purchasing Director or Manager of Diversity to submit an acceptable affirmative action program to the Diversity Officer.
- 3. If the vendor which has been found not in compliance submits an <u>acceptable</u> affirmative action plan to the Diversity Officer within ten (10) business days of notification, the vendor may be given conditional approval.

C. AFFIRMATIVE ACTION PLAN

- Vendor found not in compliance with the District's equal employment opportunity standards are
 expected to develop and implement affirmative action programs if they expect to be eligible to
 successfully propose for District contracts.
- 2. While it is the vendor's responsibility to develop an affirmative action program which will result in equal employment opportunity for persons from all sectors of the community, the Officer in Charge of the Diversity Program may refer prospective proposers to resources which may be of assistance in developing affirmative action programs.
- 3. In the event that a vendor who has been awarded a District contract does not make satisfactory progress toward goals in the affirmative action program, the District will not negotiate a new contract until the vendor assures the Diversity Officer that significant progress will be made.

D. CONDITIONS UNDER WHICH PROPOSALS MAY BE REJECTED OR CONTRACTS TERMINATED ON EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY GROUNDS

- 1. Vendor fails to submit completed and signed EEO documents with proposal or other requested information in a timely manner.
- 2. The vendor is found not to be in compliance with EEO laws, regulations and District policy, and does not have an acceptable Affirmative Action Program, or if the vendor has an acceptable Affirmative Action Program but the Diversity Officer determines the vendor has not made satisfactory progress toward goals in the plan and shows no promise of achieving the goals.
- 3. Any inconsistencies of misrepresentation of the facts in any of the requested information designed to portray the vendor in a more favorable position with respect to Equal Employment Opportunity Compliance will be grounds for cancellation of the contract by the Purchasing Director upon recommendation by the Diversity Officer and confirmation by the Cleveland Municipal School District.

Form 1: Vendor Contract Compliance Form

Name of Firm:		
Address:		
City, State, Zip Code:		
Telephone Number:		
Standard Metropolitan Statisti	cal Area:	
Recruitment Area:		
Type of Business (product or se	ervice):	
Name of EEO Officer:		
Signature of Owner, Partner, o	r Authorized Officer:	
Name (type or print):		
Date:	Title:	
	Do not complete below this line	
Status of Vendor:		
Compliance	Conditional Compliance	
Non-Compliance	Compliance Pending	
Comments:		
Date:	Signature:	

Form 2: Compliance Declaration

The following must be filled out completely:

It is the policy of	that equal employment
opportunity be afforded to all qualified $\ensuremath{\text{p}}$ origin, age, or handicap.	persons without regard to race, religion, color, sex, national
In support of this policy.	will not discriminate against any
employee or applicant for employment I handicap.	because of race, religion, color, sex, national origin, age, or
Tidinaleap.	
employed and that employees are treat national origin, age, or handicap. Such ac	will take affirmative action to insure that applicants are ted during employment without regard to race, color, sex, tion will include, but not be limited to:
	for employment, hiring, placement, upgrading, transfer or apprenticeship rates of pay or other forms of compensation,
	ey are of current applicable requirement pertaining to Fair Practices of Federal, State, and Local Governments.
The undersigned further acknowledges t undersigned will comply with all Fair Laboratory	hat if the contract is awarded to the undersigned, that the or Standard Practice.
(Name of Company)	
	Date:
(Signature of Company Official)	
STATE OF ()	
COUNTY OF ()SS.
	aid County and State personally appeared the above-namedby
It's	, who acknowledged that they knowingly signed the
aforesaid instrument, and that the same and deed of said company.	, who acknowledged that they knowingly signed the is their free act and deed duly authorized and the free act
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereto s	set my hand and affixed seal at
	, this
day of, 20	

DESCRIPTION OF JOB CATEGORIES

OFFICIALS, MANAGERS, AND SUPERVISORS

Occupations requiring administrative personnel who set District policies, exercise overall responsibility of the places, and direct individual departments or special phases of a firm's operations includes: officials, executives, middle management, plant managers, department managers, and superintendents, salaried supervisors who are members of management, purchasing agents, buyers, and kindred workers.

PROFESSIONALS

Occupations requiring either college graduation or experience of such kind and amount as to provide background. Includes: accountants and auditors, airplane pilots and editors, engineers, layers, librarians, mathematicians, natural scientists, personnel and labor relations workers, physical scientists, physicians, social scientists, teacher's and kindred workers.

TECHNICIANS

Occupations requiring a combination of basic scientific knowledge and manual skill which can be obtained through (about) two years of post high school education, such as that which is offered in many technical institutes and junior colleges, or through equivalent on-the-job training. Includes: drafters, engineering aides, junior engineers, mathematical aids, nurses, photographers, radio operators, scientific assistants, surveyor of technical illustrators, technicians (medical, dental, electronic, physical sciences), and kindred workers.

SALES WORKERS

Occupations engaging wholly or primarily in direct selling. Includes: advertising agents and salespersons, insurance agents and brokers, real estate agents and brokers, stock bond salespersons, demonstrators, sales persons, sales clerks, and kindred workers.

OFFICE AND CLERICAL

Includes all clerical-type work regardless of level of difficulty, where the activities are predominantly non-manual, includes: bookkeepers, cashiers, collectors (bills and account), messengers and office clerks, office machine operators, shipping and receiving clerks, stenographers, typists and secretaries, telegraph and telephone operators and kindred workers.

CRAFTWORKERS (SKILLED)

Manual workers of relatively high skill level having a thorough and comprehensive knowledge of the process involved in their work, exercise considerable independent judgment, and usually receive an extension period of training. Includes: the building trades hourly paid foremen who are not members of management, mechanics and repairers, skilled machine operators, compositors and typesetters, electricians, engravers, job setters (metal), motion picture projectionists, pattern and model makers, stationary engineers, tailors and kindred workers.

OPERATIVE (SEMI-SKILLED)

Workers who operate machine or processing equipment or perform other factory-type duties of intermediate skill level which can be mastered in a few weeks and require limited training.

LABORERS (UNSKILLED)

Workers in manual occupations which generally require no special training. Perform elementary duties that may be learned in a few days and require the application of little or no independent judgment. Includes: garage laborers, car washers and greasers, gardeners (except farmers), ground-

keepers, long-shore workers, craftsperson and stevedores, lumber's and wood chippers, laborers performing lifting, digging, mixing, loading, and pulling operations, and kindred workers.

SERVICE WORKERS

Workers in both protective and non-protective service occupations. Includes: attendants (hospital and other instruction, professional and personal service), barbers, and cleaners, cooks, guards, door keepers, stewards, janitors, police officers and detectives, porters, food services, and kindred workers.

APPRENTICES

Persons employed in a program including work training and related instruction to learn a trade or craft which is traditionally considered an apprentice, regardless of whether the program is registered with a Federal or State agency.

Form 3: Employment Data Form

Please note this data may be obtained by visual survey or post-employment record. Neither visual surveys nor post-employment records are prohibited by any federal, state or local law. All specified data is required to be filled in by District policy.

	All EMPLPOYEES			MALES			FEMALES						
Job Categories	TOALS MALES & FEMALES	MALES	FEMALES	WHITE (NOT OF HISPANIC ORIGIN)	BLACK (NOT OF HISPANIC ORIGIN)	ASIAN AMERICAN OR PACIFIC ISLANDER	AMERICAN INDIAN OR ALSKAN NATIVE	HISPANIC	WHITE (NOT OF HISPANIC ORIGIN)	BLACK (NOT OF HISPANIC ORIGIN)	ASIAN AMERICAN OR PACIFIC ISLANDE	AMERICAN INDIAN OR ALSKAN NATIVE	HISPANIC
OFFICIALS, MGRS & SUPERVISORS													
PROFESSIONALS													
TECHNICIANS													
SALES WORKERS													
OFFICE/CLERICAL													
CRAFTWORKERS (SKILLED)													
OPERATIONS (SEMI-SKILLED)													
LABORERS (UNSKILLED)													
SERVICE WORKERS													
APPRENTICES													
TOTAL													

Additional information (optional):

Describe any other actions taken which show that all employees are recruited, hired, or trained or promoted without regard to their race, religion, color, sex, handicap, age or national origin. Use second sheet if additional space is needed:

The undersigned certifies that they are legally authorized by the proposer to make the statements and representations contained in this report, and that they have red all of the foregoing statements and representations which are true and correct to the best of their knowledge and belief.

FIRM OR CORPORATE NAME:	DATE:
SIGNATURE:	TITLE:

Section XIV: Supplier Contract Sample

CMSD SUPPLIER CONTRACT (DO NOT COMPLETE)

This agreement is made on this	day of	201_, by and between
ıpplier Name	Address, City, State	e, Zip
Supplier") and THE CLEVELAN uite 1800, Cleveland, Ohio 44114 (L DISTRICT , 1111 Superior Ave. E. e purpose described below.
CONTRACT PURPOSE. The pr	urpose of this contract is:	(C4-4- D)
		(State Purpose)
by providing the following: (<i>list</i> provided):	all equipment, supplies, god	ods, services and deliverables to be
The District's request for proposa re-written.	l, and the Supplier's bid or p	proposal, are incorporated herein as if f
TFRM This Agreement shall co	mmence on the date executi	ed by the second of the Parties to sign
instrument and shall terminate on		•
deliverables described above and	no later than	(Date);
provided, however, that the Distri	ct may terminate this Agree	ement without obligation and without c

3. **COMPENSATION.** Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the District agrees to

below.

by giving fourteen (14) days written notice to the Supplier under the Termination for Convenience clause

	Dollars	(\$).
spell out dollar amount			numeric amount	dollar
PAYMENT FOR THIS CONTRACT SHALL BE:				
	Dollars	(\$).
spell out dollar amount			numeric amount	dollar
payable as follows (state payment terms):				
ogether with a <u>detailed summary</u> of the equipment, suppl Supplier will submit periodic invoices describing an deliverables provided, the amount of each service or iter	ies, goods, serv y services, ec n, and any doo	vices quipr cume	and deliverable and supplies that ion and p	oles provid es, goods, program rep
Supplier with a <u>detailed summary</u> of the equipment, supplied Supplier will submit periodic invoices describing an deliverables provided, the amount of each service or iter requested by the District to prove that the service was acceptable actually being provided, upon the District's requested.	ies, goods, serv y services, ec m, and any doc tually provided	vices quipr cume d. Fa	and deliverable and supplies that ion and pilure to provi	oles provides, goods, program reported proof of
Payment rendered may be within ninety (90) days after the together with a detailed summary of the equipment, supplied Supplier will submit periodic invoices describing and deliverables provided, the amount of each service or iter requested by the District to prove that the service was acceptated actually being provided, upon the District's requested services. Supplier is not entitled to payment of contract proceed deliverables under this Agreement are no longer needed. Agreement be terminated by the District with or without of the supplier is not entitled by the District with or without the supplier is not entitled by the District with the supplier is not entitled by the District with the sup	y services, ed n, and any doc tually provided test, shall excur- ls if equipment, required, rec	vices quipr cume d. Fa ase th	and deliverable and pilot and pilot intation and pilot provine District of applies, goods	es, goods, program rep de proof of paying for s, services

5. **FUNDING SOURCE.**

utilization of third-party Suppliers or Contractors.

FD_		FN	SC	PG
Fund	Cost Center	Function	Spend Category	Program
	Additional Worktags	Additional Worktags		

6. <u>INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS.</u> The Supplier shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the District, all of its members, officers, employees, and agents, from and against any and all liability (whether real or asserted), claims, demands expenses, costs (including legal fees), and causes of

action of any nature whatsoever for injury or death of persons, or damage or destruction of property which may result from or arise out of the negligence or intentional misconduct of the Supplier or its employees, officers, or agents, in the course of the Supplier's performance of this Agreement or the Supplier's failure to perform. This indemnification and hold harmless obligation survives the term of this Agreement.

- 7. **INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS.** Supplier and the District acknowledge and agree that Supplier is an independent Contractor and has no authority to bind the District or otherwise act as a representative of the District. The District will provide **no** benefits such as health insurance, unemployment insurance, or worker's compensation insurance to Independent Contractor. Independent Supplier will be responsible for payment of all federal, state and local income taxes, unemployment and worker's compensation coverage's.
- 8. <u>AMENDMENT/MODIFICATION.</u> No amendment or modification of this Agreement, and no waiver hereunder, shall be valid or binding unless set forth in writing and signed by each party.
- 9. CONFIDENTIALITY/OWNERSHIP. The Supplier agrees that all financial, statistical or proprietary information provided by the District or any information that the Supplier may acquire, directly or indirectly, if any, which relates to the District will be kept confidential and not used by or released to any third party or parties without the prior written consent of the District. The Supplier further agrees that any written material, (e.g., report, study, etc.), developed for the District shall be property of the District, and the District shall be entitled to obtain copyrights or any similar such protection for any deliverables furnished by the Supplier under the terms of this Agreement, and that any such materials be considered a "work-for-hire."
- 10. **NO DAMAGES FOR DELAY.** The District shall not be held responsible for any loss, damage, costs, or expenses sustained by the Supplier as the result of any project delays, disruptions, suspensions, work stoppages, or interruptions of any kind, whether reasonable or unreasonable or whether occasioned by changes ordered in the work or otherwise caused by an act or omission of the District, its agents, employees, or representatives, or by any cause whatsoever beyond the control of the Supplier.
- 11. <u>FINDINGS FOR RECOVERY/ DEBARMENT OR SUSPENSION.</u> [ATTACH CERTIFICATION FROM AUDITOR OF STATE'S WEBSITE AND FEDERAL SYSTEM FOR AWARD MANAGEMENT (SAM) WEBSITE]

https://ohioauditor.gov/findings/Certified/default.aspx http://www.sam.gov/portal/public/SAM/

Supplier represents that it has no unresolved findings for recovery against it by the Ohio Auditor of State or any notice of debarment or suspension from any Federal Agency. The District may terminate this contract at any time if the Supplier or any of its directors or officers is found at any time to have any unresolved findings for recovery by the Auditor of State or any notice of debarment or suspension from any Federal Agency.

- 12. CRIMINAL BACKGROUND CHECK. Supplier agrees to successfully complete a criminal background check on any of its employees who provide services under this Agreement in the school district and who are required by Ohio Revised Code Section 3319.39, 3319.31 or 3319.392, as amended. A copy of all such background checks shall be provided by the Supplier to the District at the Supplier's expense.
- 13. **<u>DISCRIMINATION.</u>** Supplier certifies that it does not discriminate and covenants that it shall not discriminate on the basis of race, religion, marital status, color, national origin, sex, age, disability or any other classification protected under federal, state, or local law.

- 14. **PERSONNEL.** Upon the District's request, and in its sole discretion, Supplier shall replace personnel, if any, assigned by Supplier.
- 15. **LABOR DISPUTE.** If the Supplier has knowledge that any actual or potential labor dispute is delaying or threatens to delay the timely performance of this contract, the party shall immediately give notice, including all relevant information, to the District.
- 16. **PROMPT PAYMENT DISCOUNT.** If the Supplier offers a prompt payment discount on any other contract, public or private, then the District shall be extended the same discount on this contract and shall be so notified of the existence of the discount and the terms thereof.
- 17. <u>DAMAGE TO BUILDINGS, EQUIPMENT, AND VEGETATION.</u> The Supplier shall use reasonable care to avoid damaging existing buildings, equipment, and vegetation on the District premises. If the Supplier's failure to use reasonable care causes damage to any District property, the Supplier shall replace or repair the damage at no expense to the District as the District directs. If the Supplier fails or refuses to make such repair or replacement, the Supplier shall be liable for the cost, which may be deducted from the contract price.
- 18. **TIME.** Time is of the essence in the performance of this contract.
- 19. **NOTICE OF BANKRUPTCY.** If the event Supplier enters into proceedings relating to bankruptcy, whether voluntary or involuntary, the Supplier agrees to furnish, by certified mail or electronic commerce method authorized by the contract, written notification of the bankruptcy to the District Office responsible for administering the contract. This notification shall be furnished within five days of the initiation of the proceedings relating to bankruptcy filing. This notification shall include the date on which the bankruptcy petition was filed, the identity of the court in which the bankruptcy petition was filed, and a listing of District contract numbers and contracting offices for all District contracts against which final payment has not been made. This obligation remains in effect until final payment under this contract.
- 20. <u>PAYMENT OF MONEYS DUE DECEASED SUPPLIER.</u> If the Supplier dies or is dissolved prior to completion of this Agreement, any moneys that may be due to Supplier from the District for services rendered prior to the date of death or dissolution shall be paid to Supplier's executors, administrators, heirs, personal representative, successors, or assigns or as may be directed by an order of a Probate Court.
- 21. **AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS.** The Parties acknowledge and agree that the District is a governmental entity and due to statutory provisions cannot commit to the payment of funds beyond its fiscal year (July 1, through June 30). If funds are not allocated for the Services that are the subject of this Agreement following the commencement of any succeeding fiscal year during which this Agreement may continue, the District may terminate this Agreement without liability for any termination charges, fees, or penalties, at the end of its last fiscal period for which funds were appropriated. The District shall be obligated to pay all charges incurred through the end of the last fiscal period for which funds were appropriated. The District shall give the Service Supplier written notice that funds have not been appropriated (a) within a reasonable time after the District receives notice of such non-appropriation; and, (b) at least fourteen (14) days prior to the effective date of such termination.
- 22. **RECORDS.** The Supplier shall maintain all records pertaining to this Agreement on file for not less than ten (10) years and until any audit issues are resolved and to make such records available to the District, or any other duly authorized representative, upon request except if this is a federally funded contract.

If this is federally funded, the Supplier shall comply with all federally required records retention rules, regulations and laws and shall allow access as required by local, state or federal law, rules, regulations or ordinances.

- 23. **<u>DEFAULT.</u>** Any of the following events constitute default by the Supplier:
 - a. Non-performance of any term, covenant, or condition of this Agreement by the Supplier within the time provided; or
 - b. Any act of insolvency by the Supplier or the filing of any petition under any bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, receivership, or moratorium law, or any law for the relief of, or relating to debtors; or
 - c. The filing of any involuntary petition under any bankruptcy statute against the Supplier or the appointment of any receiver or trustee or to take possession of the property of the Supplier; or
 - d. Failure of the Supplier to pay a third party(ies) resulting in any claim(s) against the District or the filing of Liens on Public Funds; or
 - e. Failure to maintain the required insurance or equipment as well as failure to provide qualified/licensed personnel or quality and safe vehicles.
- 24. **EFFECT OF DEFAULT.** In the event of any default by the Supplier, the District may do any one or all of the following:
 - a. Terminate the contract and withhold funds due, if any to satisfy any third-party claims;
 - b. Sue for and recover all damages arising out of the Supplier's default;
 - c. Cure the default and obtain reimbursement and cover from the Supplier.
 - d. Exercise any other rights available to it in law or equity.
- 25. **WAIVER OF DEFAULT.** If the District consents to or waives the breach of any provision of covenant in this Agreement, such waiver shall not constitute a waiver of such provisions or covenant as to the future, and the District shall not be estopped from later enforcing any provision or covenant it may have previously waived or elected not to enforce; nor shall such waiver have any effect on the enforcement of any other provision of this contract.
- 26. <u>TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE OF DISTRICT.</u> The District may terminate this Agreement at its option without obligation upon fourteen (14) days written notice to the Supplier. The District may terminate this Agreement for any reason or no reason at all.
- 27. **EFFECT OF TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE.** If the District terminates this Agreement for its convenience, then the District shall only remit payment to the Supplier for work performed up to the date of termination. In no event shall the Supplier be entitled to lost or anticipatory profits.

28. MISCELLANEOUS.

- a. Supplier represents and warrants that she possesses the qualification and personnel, if required, to provide the services agreed to herein.
- b. Neither party may assign, modify, or sub-contract this Agreement, or any right or interest herein, without the prior written consent of the other party.

- c. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties, their successors, and permitted assigns.
- d. To the extent that the terms of this Agreement materially conflict with or render ambiguous any provision of the Supplier's (Bid/Proposal), the terms of this Agreement shall govern.
- e. The paragraph headings are for convenience only and shall not effect the interpretation of this Agreement.
- f. This validity, construction of this Agreement shall be determined in accordance with the laws of the State of Ohio.
- g. The Supplier and all subcontractors shall comply with all local, state and federal laws, rules, regulations and ordinances.
- h. No travel expense reimbursement is authorized unless specifically stated in this contract. If so stated, the meals, travel, and lodging are reimbursable only in strict compliance with the Ohio Auditor of State Technical Bulletins, Guidance and Rules and Regulations and, if this contract is federally funded in whole or in part, in strict compliance with all rules, regulations and guidance of the U.S. Office of Management and Budget and any other federal office or agency having jurisdiction over federally funded contracts.
- i. This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the services to be provided hereunder, and there are no representations, understandings or agreements, oral or written, which are not included herein.
- 29. <u>CONFLICT OF INTEREST</u>. The Supplier represents that he/she is not an employee or board member of the Cleveland Municipal School District. The Supplier further represents that no employee or board member of the Cleveland Municipal School District has any ownership interest in or fiduciary duties to the Supplier or any of its parent affiliations and is not on the board of directors of the Supplier or hold any officer position with the Supplier. The District's signatory to this agreement represents that neither he/she or any family member have any ownership interest in or fiduciary duties to the Supplier or any of its parent affiliations and are not on the board of directors of the Supplier or hold any officer position with the Supplier.

CONTRACT MUST BE APPROVED BY CMSD LEGAL DEPARTMENT PRIOR TO SIGNATURE

	Approved as to form:
	Law Department Cleveland Municipal School District
	DATE:

NOTICE 1	TO SUPPLIERS
BEEN SIGNED BY A DULY AUTHORIZED	E PROVIDED UNTIL AFTER THE CONTRACT HAS DEPRESENTATIVE OF THE DISTRICT AND A ONTRACT NUMBER HAS BEEN ISSUED TO THE
	DISTRICT IS NOT OBLIGATED TO PAY FOR IOR TO THE DATE THIS CONTRACT HAS BEEN EPRESENTATIVE.
*************	**********
<i>IN WITNESS WHEREOF</i> , the parties hereto hav authorized representatives as of the day and year fire	e caused this Agreement to be executed by them or their est above written.
(SUPPLIER NAME)	CLEVELAND MUNICIPAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
BY: DO NOT COMPLETE/SIGN	BY:
TITLE: Supplier	TITLE:
DATE:	DATE:

Section XV: References

Include below three references of equal or larger size to this current RFP project. Public sector experience is preferred, but not required. Please attach relevant supporting documentation, such as project plans, scope of work.

Reference #1:

Company/School Name:
Address:
Type of Business:
Contact Person:
Telephone and Fax#:
Dates of Service:
Description of Services Provided:
Reference #2: Company/School Name:
Address:
Type of Business:
Contact Person:
Telephone and Fax #:
Dates of Service:
Description of Services Provided:
Reference #3: Company/School Name:
Address:
Type of Business:
Contact Person:

Telephone and Fax#:	 	
Dates of Service:	 	
Description of Services Provided:		